
Wednesday, January 15, 2020
1:30 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

JoAnn Busenbark Board Room

NVTA Board of Directors

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of 

Directors are posted on the NVTA website at https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx at least 72 hours 

prior to the meeting and will be available for public inspection, on and after at the time of such 

distribution, in the office of the Secretary of the NVTA Board of Directors, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, 

California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., except for 

NVTA Holidays.  Materials distributed to the present members of the Board at the meeting will be 

available for public inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the members of the NVTA Board or 

staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person.  Availability of materials related to 

agenda items for public inspection does not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure 

under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Members of the public may speak to the Board on any item at the time the Board is considering the 

item. Please complete a Speaker’s Slip, which is located on the table near the entryway, and then 

present the slip to the Board Secretary.  Also, members of the public are invited to address the Board 

on any issue not on today’s agenda under Public Comment.  Speakers are limited to three minutes.

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a disability .  

Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Karrie Sanderlin, 

NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the 

time of the meeting.

This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NVTA website https://legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Agenda - Final



Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 

discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del ingl és quienes quieran dirigirse a la 

Autoridad.  Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259-8633.  Requerimos que solicite 

asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin 

ang mga ito, ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang 

Ingles, na nais na matugunan ang mga bagay-bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA Board.  Para sa mga 

tulong sa akomodasyon o pagsasalin-wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259-8633.  Kakailanganin 

namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang inyong 

kahilingan.



January 15, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Pledge of Allegiance

4.  Adoption of the Agenda

5.  Public Comment

6.  Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's, 

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7.  Director's Update

8.  Caltrans' Update

9.  QUARTERLY PROJECT UPDATES

9.1 Soscol Junction Project

9.2 Imola Avenue Park and Ride Improvement Project

9.3 Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility

9.4 State Route 29 (SR 29) and State Route 37 (SR 37) Corridor 

Updates (Danielle Schmitz)

Note:  Where times are indicated for the agenda item, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

10.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (10.1 - 10.3)

10.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of November 20, 2019 (Karrie 

Sanderlin) (Pages 9-16)

Board action will approve the meeting minutes of November 20, 2019.

  

Recommendation:

2:10 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft Minutes.pdfAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/8/2020

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ce6bd466-3844-4220-be2f-03468fe8ae11.pdf


January 15, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.2 Revised Letter of Support for the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 

(SMART) East-West Passenger Rail  (Danielle Schmitz) (Page 

17-22)

Board action will approve the revised letter of support to the California 

State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) for the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 

Transit (SMART) East-West Passenger Rail to include a connection to the 

Vallejo Ferry Terminal as requested by NVTA's Citizen Advisory 

Committee. 

Recommendation:

2:10 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

10.3 Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Napa Valley Transportation 

Authority (NVTA) Agreement No. 15-31 with Platinum Advisors, 

LLC (Kate Miller) (Pages 23-26)

Board action will approve the Second Amendment to NVTA Agreement 

No. 15-31 with Platinum Advisors, LLC, and authorize the Executive 

Director, or designee, to execute the agreement, exercising the final 

extension option, for state legislative advocacy services in an amount 

not to exceed $32,400.

Recommendation:

2:10 p.m.

 

Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

11.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

11.1 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP): Advancing Mobility 2045 

Goals and Objectives (Alberto Esqueda) (Pages 27-34)

Board action will approve the CTP goals and objectives.Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/8/2020

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7165aa43-df66-4996-9364-19eaea71a7e4.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53c2bb1b-68e7-4386-84c1-4354780dff2f.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f552c6b-316f-4d17-9b03-08e7b08a6ddc.pdf


January 15, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

11.2 Annual Financial Statement with Independent Auditor's Report for 

the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 and Single Audit Report 

of Uniform Guidance for the Year Ended June 30, 2019 (Antonio 

Onorato)  (Pages 35-133)

Board action will (1) accept and file the Financial Statements with 

Independent Auditor’s Report for Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2019 and 

2018 and the NVTA Single Audit Report of the Uniform Guidance for the 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 and  (2) return an allocation surplus of 

$1,107,126 to the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) Trust Fund 

administered by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for future 

allocation.

Recommendation:

2:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff report.pdfAttachments:

11.3 Resolution No. 20-01 Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Execute Cooperative Agreement 04-2479 between the State of 

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and the Napa 

Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) for Project No. 

0418000447 (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 134-168)

Board action will adopt Resolution No. 20-01 approving Cooperative 

Agreement 04-2749 with the Caltrans and aurthorize the Executive 

Director, or designee, to sign the Cooperative Agreement and 

amendments for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Calistoga to St. Helena project.

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.

 

Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

11.4 Legislative and State Bill Matrix Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 

169-176)

The Board will receive the State Legislative update and State Bill Matrix 

prepared by Platinum Advisors.

Recommendation:

2:40 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

12.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/8/2020

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=28ea3d67-e950-48a9-94ab-fbf66f0e5745.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ee282ee4-7934-4bb8-884e-d716f27bc6d0.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3d83ee2e-c6cf-457e-96b4-82e49b23ef6f.pdf


January 15, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

13.  CLOSED SESSION

13.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government 

Code Section 54957(B)(1))

Title: Executive Director

2:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

14.  ADJOURNMENT

14.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting of Wednesday, February 19, 

2020 and Adjournment

2:55 p.m.Estimated Time:

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely accessible 

to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by 5:00 p.m. on 

Wednesday, January 8, 2020.

Kathy Alexander (E-sign)

____________________________________

Kathy Alexander, NVTA Deputy Board Secretary

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/8/2020



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 07/18 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 
ADA American with Disabilities Act 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
ATP Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 
CAP Climate Action Plan  
Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California Transportation Agency 
CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  
COC Communities of Concern 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 
GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  
HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  
HTF  Highway Trust Fund  
HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  
LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  
NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 
PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

 7



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 07/18 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  

PMS Pavement Management System  
Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 

gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  
RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

RM3 Regional Measure 3 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNCI Solano Napa Commuter Information 

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIGER Transportation Investments Generation 
Economic Recovery  

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  
TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  
TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

 8



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 1 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
 

Meeting Minutes - Draft 

NVTA Board of Directors 

625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

Wednesday, November 20, 2019 

1. Call to Order

1:30 PM JoAnn Busenbark Board Room 

Chair Canning called the meeting to order at 1:36 p.m. 

2. Roll Call

Leon Garcia 
Chris Canning 
Jill Techel 
Paul Dohring 
Mark Joseph 
Kerri Dorman 
Ryan Gregory 
Belia Ramos 
Geoff Ellsworth 
Liz Alessio 
Gary Kraus 
Beth Kahiga 
John F. Dunbar 

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Chair Canning led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by ALESSIO to APPROVE adoption of the agenda. 
Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 21 - Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus 

Absent:   3 - Dunbar, and Ramos 

5. Public Comment

None 

January 15, 2020
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1

Continued From: New
Action Requested: APPROVE

 9



NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft November 20, 2019 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 2 

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,
and Association of Bay Area Governments Update 

Board Members Update 
Jill Techel announced the City of Napa will be opening up the first of the three California 
Street/State Route 29 roundabouts on November 21st. 

MTC Commissioners Update 
Kate Miller, NVTA Executive Director, provided the MTC update in Commissioner Pedroza's 
absence. 

[Board Member Ramos in attendance] 

ABAG Update 
Leon Garcia reported on ABAG activities. 

7. Director's Update

• Announced that Karrie Sanderlin celebrated her 20th Anniversary with NVTA (NCTPA) on
November 1st. 
• Reported that NVTA staffed the Emergency Operation Center (EOC) during the recent public
safety power shutoff (PSPS) and fires in Sonoma County. 
• Reported meeting Toks Omishakin, the new Caltrans Director on November 15th, along with
other Bay Area’s County Transportation Agency (BACTA) Executive Directors. BACTA Executive 
Directors also had the opportunity to hear Mr. Omishakin speak at the Self Help County Coalition 
Focus on the Future conference where he laid out his priorities which include: System Safety, 
Balancing Modes, Efficiency, Innovation, Stakeholder Engagement. 
• Reported that Susan Bransen, the California Transportation Commission Executive Director,
has announced her retirement. 
• Announced that Matt Wilcox, NVTA’s transit manager, will be leaving NVTA at the end of the
year to go back to work for Santa Rosa City Bus. 

8. Caltrans' Update

Kelly Hirschberg, Caltrans, provided a PowerPoint presentation on State Highway Operations 
and Protection Program (SHOPP) projects in District 4. 

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (9.1 - 9.5)

Item 9.4 was pulled from consent. 

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Consent Items 9.1-9.3 and 9.5. 
Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 

Absent: 

23 - 

1 - 

Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 
and Kraus 

Dunbar 

 10



NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft November 20, 2019 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 3 

9.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2019 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 
11-17) 

Attachments: Draft Minutes 

Board action approved the meeting minutes of October 23, 2019. 

9.2 Resolution No. 19-18 Setting the Regular Meeting Time, Place, and Schedule 
of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Governing Board, the 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), the Paratransit Coordinating Council 
(PCC), the Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC), and the Active Transportation 
Advisory Committee (ATAC) for Calendar Year (CY) 2020 (Karrie Sanderlin) 
(Pages 18-28) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Board action approved Resolution No. 19-18 setting the regular meeting time, place and 
schedule for the NVTA, TAC, PCC, CAC, and ATAC for CY 2020. 

9.3 Resolution No. 19-19 Adopting the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
(NVTA) Title VI Program for Fiscal Years (FY) 2020-2021 (Rebecca Schenck) 
(Pages 29-109) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Board action approved Resolution No. 19-19 adopting the NVTA Title VI Program Policy for FY's 
2020-2021. 

9.5 Resolution No. 19-20 Adopting of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) Program and Goal Setting for Fiscal 
Years (FY's) 2020-2022 (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 196-231) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Board action approved Resolution No. 19-20 adopting the NVTA DBE Program and Goal Setting 
for FY's 2020-2022. 

10. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

 11

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bc771088-13dd-49d6-acda-ced505c743d8.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0aaddfb8-3f77-4034-a3f8-8bddc1334391.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a956f49f-b908-4a71-8455-3edf416565f8.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c39efa61-461f-4113-962d-9ef52027d48b.pdf


NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft November 20, 2019 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 4 

9.4 Award of Fueling Services Agreement No. 19-27 with Hunt & Sons, Inc., 
Agreement No. 19-28 with Napa Valley Petroleum (NVP) Inc., and Agreement 
No. 19-29 with Clean Energy (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 110-195) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

This item was pulled from consent. Board Member Gregory reported a conflict of interest as he is 
a consultant for one of the fueling companies. 

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA, to APPROVE, with GREGORY ABSTAINING, 
authorizing the Executive Director to execute fueling services agreements with Hunt & Sons, 
Inc., Napa Valley Petroleum Inc., and Clean Energy. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 21 - Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus 

Absent:   1 - Dunbar 

Abstain:   2 - Gregory 

10.1 2020 Federal and State Legislative Advocacy Program and Project Priorities 
and Legislative and State Bill Matrix Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 232-254) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

The Board received the State Legislative update from Steve Wallauch, Platinum Advisors. 

Kate Miller, Executive Director, reviewed the 2020 Federal and State Legislative Programs and 
Projects Priorities as outlined in Attachment 1. 

Member Joseph requested to add under Project Priorities, Encourage parallel roads on the state 
routes to improve traffic flow and minimize impacts of accidents and other emergencies. 

Member Dorman requested under the Revenues section to leave "from being diverted for other 
purposes" under Protect transportation funds. 

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GREGORY to APPROVE the 2020 Federal and State 
Legislative Advocacy Programs and Project Priorities as amended. Motion carried by the 
following vote: 

Aye: 

Absent: 

23 - 

1 - 

Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 
and Kraus 

Dunbar 

 12

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=20d9ba94-a688-4085-8f3c-e33252907a94.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=94470f51-6303-437c-b86b-1976bf2b246f.pdf


NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft November 20, 2019 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 5 

10.2 2019 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Triennial Review (Antonio Onorato) 
(Pages 255-283) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Staff reviewed the FTA triennial review process and compliance requirements, as well as, the 
findings. 

Motion MOVED by ELLSWORTH, SECONDED by ALESSIO to ACCEPT and FILE the 2019 FTA 
Triennial report and NVTA response. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 

Absent: 

23 - 

1 - 

Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 
and Kraus 

Dunbar 

10.3 Approval of Amendment #1 to Project Work Order No. E-02 T. Y. Lin 
International (TyLin) for On-Call A/E and Project Delivery Services (Rebecca 
Schenck) (Pages 284-302) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Staff reviewed the project process and the need for the amended contract. Member Dorman 
requested that the contingency be reduced to 10% from the 20% requested. 

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE authorizing the Executive 
Director to execute Amendment #1 to Project Work Order No. E-02 with T.Y. Lin International for 
On-Call A/E and Project Delivery services specifically for the Calistoga to St. Helena Vine Trail 
right of way acquisition services in an amount not to exceed $95,519 as amended reducing the 
contingency to 10%. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 

Absent: 

23 - 

1 - 

Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 
and Kraus 

Dunbar 

 13

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02ba568d-f2c7-452b-9ee0-8f736fa4223d.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1cb38f8e-96c3-43a2-b4ef-588949f0a0ac.pdf


NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft November 20, 2019 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 6 

10.4 Approval of the Electric Vehicle (EV) Fleet Program Terms and Conditions 
Contract with Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) and authorize the Executive 
Director to execute and take all actions necessary to grant easement deeds to 
PG&E on Parcels 057-250-360-000 and 057-250-025-00 (Rebecca Schenck) 
(Pages 303-322) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

NVTA is in the process of purchasing five electric vehicles and plans to purchase additional 
electric vehicles in the future. The cost of the electrical infrastructure to charge electric buses is 
significant. Participation in PG&E's Electric Vehicle (EV) Fleet Ready Program will help to offset 
NVTA's cost of the electric infrastructure needed to charge electric buses. NVTA will receive a 
maximum PG&E rebate of $408,000 for up to 12 vehicles and chargers over five (5) years. 

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GREGORY to APPROVE (1) the Electric Vehicle (EV) 
Fleet Program Terms and Conditions and (2) authorize the Executive Director to execute and 
take all actions necessary to grant Easement Deeds Pacific Gas and Electric for parcels 
057-250-025-000 and 057-250-036-000. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 

Absent: 

23 - 

1 - 

Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 
and Kraus 

Dunbar 

10.5 Approval to Purchase Five (5) Zero-Emission, Battery-Electric Buses from 
Build Your Dreams (BYD) Coach & Bus LLC (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 323-343) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

In 2017, the Federal Transit Administration awarded NVTA $1,092,500 for the purchase of five (5) 
Build Your Dream 30’ zero emission battery electric buses. To take advantage of various 
incentive programs, NVTA must execute a Purchase Agreement before the end of the calendar 
year and prior to pending federal legislation that may curtail the Agency’s ability to purchase 
buses from a Chinese subsidized manufacturer. 

Motion MOVED by ALESSIO, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE authorizing the Executive 
Director to execute Purchase Order 19-1022 to acquire five (5) zero-emission battery-electric 
low-floor thirty (30) foot buses from Build Your Dreams (BYD) Coach and Bus LLC in an amount 
not to exceed $3,278,182 pending receipt of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
requirements for Altoona testing from the Transit Resource Center (TRC). Motion carried by the 
following vote: 

Aye: 

Absent: 

23 - 

1 - 

Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 
and Kraus 

Dunbar 

 14

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f9479839-6810-4fa0-9c48-ad0f3f150ad4.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fa9475d0-cb8f-4164-a455-d3c71ae1568c.pdf


NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft November 20, 2019 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 7 

10.6 Resolution No. 19-21 Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute a 
Purchase and Sale Agreement for Real Property - Assessor's Parcel Number 
(APN) 057-250-037 (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 345-363) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Prior to the purchase of 96 and 101 Sheehy Ct. for a new Vine Transit Maintenance Facility, staff 
identified parcel #057-250-037 for possible expansion. However, at the time, the parcel owner was 
not interested in selling. 

NVTA received an unsolicited offer from the property owner to sell the property to NVTA. 
Acquiring the property would nearly meet the original objective of securing at least 12 acres as 
suggested in the 2013 Vine Maintenance Feasibility Study report. The proposed acquisition will 
allow future development of the maintenance facility. 

Member Dorman requested that the resolution be corrected from a 90-day to a 60-day due 
diligence period prior to the close of escrow as reported in the board memo. 

Member Techel stated her concerns with the ability [of the agency] to finance the current 
maintenance facility project and that she is uncomfortable committing to the purchase of this 
property without first being provided a full funding package for the [Vine Transit Maintenance 
Facility] project. 

Motion MOVED by KRAUS, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE, with TECHEL, DORMAN and 
DOHRING OPPOSED, Resolution No. 19-21 as Amended, correcting the Due Diligence Period to 
60-day. Motion carried by the following Roll Call Vote: 

Aye: 16 - Garcia, Canning, Kahiga, Joseph, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus 

Nay:   7 - Techel, Dohring, and Dorman 

Absent:   1 - Dunbar 

10.7 American Canyon Transit Service Hour Expansion (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 
364-370) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

At the September 18th meeting, the NVTA Board requested additional information on the 
allocation of Vine resources before voting on this item. Staff reviewed the information provided 
in Attachment 1 on how NVTA allocates service hours and the cost associated with its service. 

Motion MOVED by TECHEL, SECONDED by DOHRING to APPROVE, with DORMAN OPPOSED, the 
expansion of the American Canyon Transit services by one vehicle, effective January 2020. 
Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 22 - Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus 

 15

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9fe50234-059d-4663-8425-23733683440a.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1bae72eb-5547-4d97-b44b-b78eb7fbc2c5.pdf


NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft November 20, 2019 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/16/2019 Page 8 

Nay:   1 - Dorman 

Absent:   1 - Dunbar 

10.8 Marketing and Communication Plan Update for Vine Service Revisions 
(Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 371-372) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Information Only / No Action Taken 
The Board received an update on the marketing efforts for the Vine service restructuring. 

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Member Alessio requested a presentation by Health and Human Services for the February 19, 2020 meeting. 

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1 Approval to Cancel the Meeting of Wednesday, December 18, 2019 and 
Adjournment. The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 
15, 2020 at 1:30 p.m. 

Motion MOVED by CANNING, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE canceling the meeting of 
Wednesday, December 18, 2019 and adjournment. The next regular meeting will be held on 
Wednesday, January 15, 2020 at 1:30 p.m. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 

Absent: 

23 - 

1 - 

Garcia, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Gregory, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 
and Kraus 

Dunbar 

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

 16

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8a69fbad-8ff2-4e00-9456-613f3e11e618.pdf


January 15, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: July 2019 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director – Capital Development and Planning  

(707) 253-5968 / Email: dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov  

SUBJECT: Revised Letter of Support for the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 
(SMART) East-West Passenger Rail  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the revised letter 
of support (Attachment 1) to the California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) for the 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit (SMART) East-West Passenger Rail to include a 
connection to the Vallejo Ferry Terminal as requested by NVTA’s Citizen Advisory 
Committee.  
 
OTHER OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Option #1: Send the revised letter in support of including extension of SMART to Vallejo 
Ferry. 
 
Option #2: Do not send the revised letter  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In July the NVTA Board approved sending a letter to Secretary Kim in support of SMART 
from Novato to Suisun.  NVTA is proposing to revise the letter to include the SMART 
connection from Napa County to Vallejo Ferry. In addition, the Citizen Advisory 
Committee (CAC) has sent the NVTA Board a letter of support to include the Vallejo Ferry 
rail line in a modified letter to the California State Transportation Agency (Attachment 2).  
 

 17

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SMART staff provided a presentation at the May 15 NVTA Board meeting on the feasibility 
of passenger rail along the State Route (SR) 37 corridor which would traverse through 
south Napa County on its route from Novato to Suisun City.  The east-west connection 
would service thousands of daily commuters from Sonoma and Napa counties to Marin 
and Solano for work. Currently, there is no transit along the SR 37 corridor and a SMART 
east west expansion would offer connections to the SMART north-south main-line, as well 
as Capitol Corridor/Amtrak and NVTA’s Express Bus and Regional Routes 11, 11X, 21, 
and 29 as well as the Vallejo Ferry.  SMART has requested a letter of support from the 
North Bay County Transportation Agencies (CTAs) to advocate to CalSTA for continued 
support and resources needed to develop the east-west rail connection. At the request of 
NVTA’s CAC, NVTA staff is proposing to send a modified letter to include the connection 
to Vallejo Ferry.     
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comments 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 4 – Support Napa County’s economic vitality 
Goal 5 – Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 
 
Establishing a rail connection would greatly improve access to jobs and foster new 
economic development along the proposed rail alignment.  In addition, a rail expansion 
that improves regional transit connectivity will encourage individuals to take transit 
rather than drive.  
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
SR 37 is a 21-mile long corridor from Highway 101 in Marin County to Interstate 80 (I-80) 
in Solano County. Improvements to the corridor are being considered by the four North 
Bay County Transportation Agencies, including NVTA, in coordination with Caltrans and 

 18



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission.  As part of that effort, the project team is 
exploring alternative transportation modes including rail transit.   
 
NVTA staff is supportive of developing passenger rail in the corridor and acknowledges it 
has the ability to address many of the congestion concerns currently plaguing the corridor.  
In addition to paralleling SR 37, NVTA is supportive of extending SMART south to the 
Vallejo Ferry.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments: (1) SMART Modified Letter of Support  

(2) Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Letter to NVTA Board   

 19



 
 
 
January 15, 2020 
 
 
David S. Kim 
Secretary of California State Transportation Agency 
915 Capitol Mall, Suite 350B  
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
 
Re: Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit (SMART) Passenger Rail – Novato to Suisun City 
and Vallejo Ferry  
 
 
Dear Secretary Kim, 
 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) serves as the congestion management 
agency and public transportation provider for all jurisdictions in Napa County.  In that 
capacity, NVTA shares the responsibility for overseeing the improvements along State 
Route 37 (SR 37) which connects the four North Bay Area counties of Marin, Napa, 
Solano, and Sonoma.  NVTA is writing this letter to seek CalSTA’s continued support to 
extend Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit (SMART) passenger rail service from Novato to 
Suisun Capitol Corridor and Vallejo Ferry, via Napa County. The SMART system parallels 
SR 37 and would fill the sorely needed transit alternative for this heavily traveled corridor. 
 
SR 37 is a 21-mile long corridor from Highway 101 in Marin County to Interstate 80 (I-80) 
in Solano County.  It is recognized as the North Bay’s most heavily used east/west 
highway serving commuters and visitors.  The corridor is highly congested and travelers 
suffer significant travel delay.  The corridor is also impacted by uneven subsidence and 
intermittent storm-related flooding in several areas, which causes traffic overflow on 
existing parallel corridors that are not equipped to handle it, causing economic loss and 
reduced opportunity for residents of the North Bay including disadvantaged community 
residents who commute from Solano to Marin and Sonoma counties.  
 
In addition to evaluating highway infrastructure improvements on SR 37, the 
transportation agencies are evaluating other modes of travel along the corridor to both 
relieve congestion and to address equity concerns.  There is currently no transit that 
serves the corridor.  NVTA was encouraged by the recent east-west passenger rail 
feasibility study that was completed by SMART and strongly supports further 
development to identify ridership feasibility and complete environmental and engineering 
work on the corridor.  The SMART extension would connect to a number of express and 
regional bus services including NVTA’s routes 11, 21, and 29 which serve the San 
Francisco Ferry, BART, and Capital Corridor.  In addition, NVTA is requesting SMART 
analyze the connection to Vallejo Ferry.  NVTA is hopeful the investment in alternative 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

January 15, 2020 

 20



modes, such as passenger rail and micro transit, is one of the solutions to the congestion 
plaguing the SR 37 and SR 29 corridors.    
 
NVTA strongly supports passenger rail along the SR 37 and will continue to partner with 
SMART to bring passenger service east-west along the corridor, serving the residents 
and workers of Napa, Solano, Sonoma and Marin counties.  
 
Please contact Kate Miller, NVTA Executive Director, at (707)-259-8634 or 
kmiller@nvta.ca.gov should you have any questions or require additional information.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Chris Canning  
NVTA Board Chair 
 
 
cc: Farhad Mansourian, SMART 
      Suzanne Smith, Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
      Daryl Halls, Solano Transportation Authority  
      Anne Richmond, Transportation Authority of Marin 

 21

mailto:707)-259-8634%20or%20kmiller@nvta.ca.gov
mailto:707)-259-8634%20or%20kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


January 4, 2020 

Chair Chris Canning 
NVTA Board  
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559  

Re: Support for SMART to go to Vallejo Ferry 

Dear Chair Canning: 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) would like 
to express support for modifying the letter to Secretary Kim of the California State 
Transportation Agency (CalSTA) to include the rail line from Napa County to the Vallejo 
Ferry Terminal.   

This connection is important for Napa County residents and commuters. The SMART 
extension would connect to a number of express and regional bus services including Vine 
routes 11, 21, and 29 which serve the San Francisco Ferry, BART, and Capitol Corridor.  
The CAC is hopeful the investment in alternative modes, such as passenger rail and micro 
transit, is one of the solutions to the congestion plaguing the SR 29 and SR 37 corridors. 
The corridors are highly congested and travelers suffer significant travel delay.   

The CAC strongly supports SMART’s investigation of upgrading the rail line from Novato 
to Suisun with passenger rail and would not want to overlook the opportunity to connect 
SMART to the Vallejo Ferry.   

Sincerely, 

Michael Baldini  
NVTA CAC Chair 

cc: Citizen Advisory Committee 
NVTA Board of Directors 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

January 15, 2020 

 22



January 15, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEYCTRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Approval of Second Amendment to Napa Valley Transportation 
(NVTA) Agreement No. 15-31 with Platinum Advisors, LLC 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the Second 
Amendment to NVTA Agreement No. 15-31 with Platinum Advisors, LLC, and authorize 
the Executive Director, or designee, to execute the agreement, exercising the final 
extension option, for state legislative advocacy services in an amount not to exceed 
$32,400. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On October 23, 2015 NVTA staff released a request for proposals (RFP) for state 
legislative advocacy purposes.  One proposal was received from Platinum Advisors LLC.  
The Board approved entering into a 3-year contract, with two (2) one (1) year extension 
options, to Platinum Advisors effective January 1, 2016 for legislative advocacy services 
in an amount not to exceed $97,200.  Staff is now recommending that the board authorize 
the executive director to exercise the second and final 1-year extension for an amount 
not to exceed $32,400. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 

 23



NVTA Agenda Letter                      Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 10.3 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes 
 
Is it budgeted?  Yes, the full amount is budgeted under professional fees in the 
Congestion Management Agency budget. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income or ability.  
 
The State Legislative advocate monitors legislation that could have an adverse effect on 
transportation priorities to Napa residents and advocates on behalf of the agency to 
ensure positive funding and policy outcomes. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Second Amendment to NVTA Agreement No. 15-31 

 24



15-31 PLATINUM/A2/121019/ryk 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (“NVTA”) 

AGREEMENT NO. 15-31 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT (“SECOND AMENDMENT”) TO NAPA VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AGREEMENT NO. 15-31 is made and entered into as 
of this 15th day of  January, 2020 between the NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY (“NVTA”), and PLATINUM ADVISORS. LLC (“CONTRACTOR”), whose 
mailing address is 1215 K Street, Suite 1150, Sacramento, CA 95814.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, in January 2016 NVTA with Contractor identified as Agreement 
NCTPA No. 15-31 (“Agreement”) for specialized services to receive state advocacy and 
lobbying services; and 

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2018 the parties entered into the First Amendment 
to Agreement 15-31 (“First Amendment”) to extend the term of the Agreement an 
additional one-year period through December 31, 2019; and  

WHEREAS, NVTA wishes to amend the Agreement for continued service by 
exercising a one-year  term extension option as set forth Section 1 (b) of the Agreement; 
and 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR can provide the requested continued services at a cost 
to NVTA in the additional amount not to exceed an additional $32,400. 

TERMS 

NOW, THEREFORE, the NVTA and CONTRACTOR agree to amend the Agreement 
as follows: 

1. Section 1(a), Term of the Agreement, is amended to extend the term of the
Agreement with the expiration date of December 31, 2020.  The Scope of Services 
described in EXHIBIT A of the Agreement remain unchanged.    

2. Section 3(c) is amended to read as follows:  Compensation, the maximum
payments under the Agreement, together with the First Amendment and the Second 
Amendment, shall be a total of $162,000 for professional services and expenses; 
provided, however, that such amounts shall not be construed as guaranteed sums, and 
compensation shall be based upon services actually rendered. 

D R A F T 

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3

January 15, 2020

 25



 

 
 

 
4. Except as set forth above, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect as previously approved. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Second Amendment was executed by the parties 
hereto as of the date first above written. 
 
“NVTA”      "CONTRACTOR" 
       Platinum Advisors, LLC 
  
 
 
By_______________________________ By____________________________  
    KATE MILLER         DARIUS ANDERSON  
    Executive Director             Founder and CEO 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By_______________________________         By____________________________ 
   KARALYN E. SANDERLIN       Signature (Printed Name and Position)  
   NVTA Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By___________________________ 
   DEEANNE GILLICK 
   NVTA General Counsel 

 26



January 15, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.1 Continued 

From: October 23, 2019 Action 
Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO: NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Program Planner/Administrator 

(707) 259-5976 / Email: aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045: Goals and 
Performance Measures  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board of Directors review and approve the revised Countywide Transportation 
Plan (CTP) goals, objectives and performance measures with the modifications 
suggested by the NVTA Board ad-hoc committee.  

OTHER OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Not adopt the modifications to the Goals and retain the Goals from the previous CTP. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) previously recommended that the NVTA Board 
approve Advancing Mobility 2045’s Goals and Objectives. As of the date this memo was 
written the January TAC meeting has not occurred, staff will provide a verbal update on 
this section at the Board meeting.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

At the October 23, 2019 Board meeting, staff presented the updated goals and objectives 
for the Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045 to the Board.  At the 
meeting, the Board elected to create an ad-hoc committee to work with staff on refining 
the goals, objectives and performance measures.  On November 21 staff and the CTP 
consultants, DKS, met with the ad-hoc committee to review the goals, objectives and 
performance measures in more detail.   The public works directors from each jurisdiction 
were also invited to attend the ad-hoc committee meeting. Staff revised the goals, 

27

mailto:aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov


Board Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.1 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
objectives and performance measures (Attachment 1) to reflect the following input from 
the ad-hoc committee:  
 

1. A preamble to provide background context on the needs  
2. Transit ridership has been moved under sustainability  
3. Congestion relief has been addressed under multiple goals and in the 

performance metrics  
4. Priority Production Areas (PPAs) has been added to the objective under goal 5  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
This section is not applicable since this memorandum is updating the strategic goals 
addressed under this section. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
MTC has adopted new guidelines for CTPs. The guidelines require Countywide 
Transportation Agencies (CTAs) include performance goals and measures in their CTPs. 
NVTA is also responding to comments made by the Napa County Civil Grand Jury which 
recommended that NVTA include performance metrics and targets in its long-term 
planning process using those established by the Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
to underscore its recommendation.     
 
Staff initially evaluated performance metrics used by its partners in other counties, as well 
as the identified needs in the current CTP and outreach to date, and developed a short 
list of proposed performance metrics to assess the progress in meeting the measurable 
goals and objectives in the CTP.  This is the first time NVTA is including performance 
metrics in a CTP. Staff will create a baseline for each performance metric, which will be 
the existing condition. The baseline will establish a starting point for each metric, which 
will help evaluate both negative and positive shifts in a particular metric. After establishing 
a baseline, staff will set a target for each metric, with the goal to reach the target by the 
end of the 25-year period of the CTP. As an exercise, incremental targets may be 
established to assess progress over the four year period between Vision 2045 and Vision 
2050, the next CTP.  In some cases, the target will be higher than the baseline, for 
example in bus ridership the goal is to increase ridership. In other cases the target will be 
lower than the baseline e.g. in vehicle miles traveled (VMT) the goal is to lower the amount 
of VMT in Napa County.  
 

 28



Board Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.1 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Input collected at NVTA’s September 2019 Transportation Summit indicates the public’s 
interest in congestion and sustainability metrics. There was less interest in equity metrics, 
nevertheless, equity has become a focus area by MTC and it is now a required section in 
the CTP. Given the changing demographics in Napa – a community that is aging and 
growing in diversity – and that many of the jobs created in Napa Valley provide lower 
wages, equity will be one of the central themes in NVTA’s CTP.  
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment:  (1) Revised CTP Goals and Objectives  

(2) Revised Performance Metrics  

 29



Draft CTP 2045 Goals and Objectives 
Preamble to goals: 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is responsible for developing long-range countywide 
transportation priorities through an integrated planning process.  The 2019 Countywide Transportation Plan 
– Advancing Mobility 2045, is an update to the 2015 Transportation Plan – Vision 2040 Moving Napa
Forward.  During the 2015 Countywide Transportation Plan, NVTA conducted a needs assessment through 
various public engagement methods. Overarching themes from the outreach in 2015 remain true today. 
The community cited the following as the most pressing needs of the transportation system: 

• Congestion relief
• Improved traffic safety
• More active transportation infrastructure
• More reliable and frequent bus service
• Maintenance and repair of the existing transportation system

NVTA kicked off the update to Advancing Mobility 2045 in September. Outreach conducted to date supports 
the priorities identified by the community in 2015. In addition, outreach conducted so far has highlighted 
additional priorities as being a sustainable and equitable transportation system.  NVTA will continue to 
engage the public on the countywide plan’s priorities and projects of interest.  NVTA will also monitor 
progress towards the goals and objectives of the plan through performance metrics.  In this update to the 
countywide transportation plan, NVTA will set baseline metrics, which summarize the existing conditions.  
The goals of the Plan articulate the optimum outcome for where Napa Valley’s transportation system should 
be in 2045.  Objectives are how NVTA gets from the baseline to the goal.  NVTA will then establish specific 
measurable  performance metrics and targets to gauge how effective the plan is at reaching the established 
objectives.   

In reviewing the goals and objectives it is important to understand the issues and challenges are many and 
that some objectives may conflict with other objects.  Nevertheless, the solutions must be balanced, 
therefore the proposed goals are considered of equal importance.  

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.1 

January 15, 2020 

 30



$ 

 
Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the 
entire community regardless of age, income or 
ability. 

 
Objectives: 

1. Provide safe access to jobs, schools, recreation and other daily 
needs for Napa’s residents and visitors. 

 
2. Endeavor to serve Serve the special transportation needs of 

seniors, children and the disabled. 
 

3. Coordinate transportation services for disabled persons, 
seniors, children and other groups so each serves as many 
people as possible. 

 
4. Provide affordable transportation solutions to ensure access 

to jobs, education, goods, and services for all members of 
the community. 

 
 

Goal 2: Improve system safety in order to support all 
modes and serve all users. 

 
Objectives: 
1. Design roadways and other transportation facilities to enhance 

coexistence of users of all modes. 
 

2. Educate all roadway users so they may safely coexist. 
 

2.3. Work with Napa jurisdictions to adopt safety strategies such 
as Vision Zero strategies that meet address their needs and 
requirements. Work with Napa jurisdictions to adopt 
complete streets policies to meet the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission’s funding eligibility 
requirements. 

 
3.4. Ensure Measure T roadway funds are maximized to 

improve infrastructure, as allowed under the Ordinance, 
to benefit all transportation modes. 

 
4.5. Prioritize Promote projects that expand travel options for 

cyclists and pedestrians as well as those projects that 
improvereduce operation congestion and  improve safety 
for vehicles, pedestrians, and cyclists 

 

 

Goal 3: Use taxpayer 
dollars efficiently  

 
 
 
Objectives: 
1. Continue to prioritize local 

streets and road 
maintenance, consistent 
with Measure T. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
2. Invest in fast and reliable bus 

service and infrastructure, so 
public transit is an attractive 
alternative to driving alone. 

 
3. Identify innovative  alternative 

solutions that minimize costs, 
and maximize system 
performance and reduce 
congestion. 

 
4. Provide real-time traffic and 

transportation information 
via MTC’s 511 or similar 
system by 2017. 

 
5.4. Explore new transportation 

funding sources, including fees 
associated with new 
development. 

 
6.5. 4.Develop Foster partnerships 

with Caltrans, California 
Transportation Commission 
(CTC), Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission 
(MTC) and Napa’s state 
legislators to support expanded 
transportation funding for local 
mobility needs and to 
accommodate demand from 
regional traffic that travels 
through Napa County. 

 
 

 
 

Commented [EA1]: This objective has been deleted 
because it has already been achieved.  

 31



  
 

Goal 4: Support Promote Napa 
County’s economic 
vitalitysustainability.  
 

Objectives: 

1. Identify and improve key goods movement routes. 
 

2. Work with employers to improve access to 
employment centers, as well as dispersed 
agricultural employment sites. 

 
3. Improve transportation services aimed at visitors, 

including alternatives to driving. 
 

4. Use Support policies transportation 
demand management techniques tothat 
shift travel from peak to non-peak 
timeshours. 

 

Goal 5: Minimize the energy and 
other resources required to move 
people and goods. 

 

 
Objectives: 
1. Prioritize projects that reduce greenhouse gases. 

 
2. Increase mode share for transit, walking, and 

bicycling to 10% by 20352045. 

 
3. Reduce the growth of automobile vehicle miles 

traveled (VMT) by shifting trips to other modes. 
 

4. Encourage the provision of alternative fuel 
infrastructure. 

 
5. Invest in improvements to the transportation 

network that serve land use, consistent 
with SB 375. 

 
6. Identify revenues that support investments in 

Priority Development Areas (PDAs) and 
Priority Production Areas (PPAs). 

Goal 6: Prioritize the maintenance and 
rehabilitation of the existing system 

 
Objectives: 

 
1. Deliver Measure T projects effectively. 

 
2. Focus funding on maintenance priorities. 

 

 

Commented [MK2]: Let’s establish the target with our 
list of metrics  

 32



Draft Performance Measures 

EQUITY • Households by income category within .25 miles from transit stop

• Jobs accessible by transit within a travel time shed

SAFETY • Fatal and serious injury collisions

EFFICIENCY 

(CONGESTION RELIEF) 

• Person hours of delay 

• Delay index (ratio of congested travel time to free flow travel time for a corridor)

• On time bus performance (captures impact to transit users)

• Number of users in NVTA’s Travel Demand Management (TDM) Program such as
VCommute

ECONOMIC 
VITALITYSUSTAINABIL
ITY 

• Goods movement

• Jobs accessible by transit within a travel time shed

SUSTAINABILITY • Greenhouse gas emissions

• Vehicle miles traveled (VMT) per capita

• Active transportation mode shares

• Transit ridership

• On-time performance

$ 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Board Item 11.1 

January 15, 2020 

Commented [EA1]: This icon will be remade to symbolize 
Congestion 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

 33



 MAINTENANCE & 
PRESERVATION 

• Miles between bus road calls 

• Pavement Condition Index 

• Transit ridership or on-time performance 

 

 34



 

January 15, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: ACCEPT AND FILE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance, and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Annual Financial Statement with Independent Auditor’s Report for the 
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 and Single Audit Report of 
Uniform Guidance for the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:  
 

(1) Accept and file the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for 
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2019 and 2018 (Attachment 2) and the NVTA 
Single Audit Report of the Uniform Guidance for the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
(Attachment 3); and  

 
(2) Return an allocation surplus of $1,107,126 to the Local Transportation Fund 

(LTF) Trust Fund administered by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
for future allocation. 

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The certified public accountants firm, Brown Armstrong Incorporated, has completed 
NVTA’s annual financial audit for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 and federal 
Single Audit Report of Uniform Guidance for the year ended June 30, 2018.  
 
  

 35

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                 Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Attachment 1 is the Statement of Auditing Standards (SAS) 114 Management Letter to 
the NVTA Board of Directors communicating the outcome of the audit inclusive of any 
findings.  Attachment 2 is the Fiscal Audit Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 
and 2018.  Attachment 3 is the Single Audit Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2019.   
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Not for this action.  Nevertheless, $1,107,126 will be returned to 
the Local Transportation Fund for reallocation, which will be made available for future 
allocation to NVTA. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 16378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 
 
Annual financial audits are a requirement to maintain the agency in good standing and to 
receive federal, state, and local tax revenues.  Formal action to accept the audit is 
required by NVTA’s funding partners and supports public sector transparency.   
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
NVTA’s annual audit was prepared in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States.  The report includes a Management Discussion and 
Analysis section, basic financial statements including government-wide and fund financial 
statements, Notes to the statements, and other Required Supplementary Information.  
Additionally, Brown Armstrong prepared separate Single Audit Report discussing findings 
of weakness and deficiencies in internal controls and Supplementary Report for Measure 
T as a discretely presented component unit.   
 
NVTA Financial Highlights 
 
At the close of the fiscal year 2019-2018, total assets and deferred outflows of NVTA’s 
resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $26,186,894.  Of this 

 36



NVTA Agenda Letter                 Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
amount, $22,508,328 is the net investment in capital assets.  The remaining $3,678,566 
represents the unrestricted Net Position. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, NVTA’s governmental activities reported an ending fund balance of 
$2,440,230 or 48% of total governmental fund expenditures. 
 
Business-type activity (Transit Fund) expenses increased from $13,480,279 in fiscal year 
2017-2018 to $13,937,571 in fiscal year 2018-2019 which is an overall increase of 3.4%. 
The growth is accounted for by increases in operating expenses, namely purchase 
transportation and fuel. 
 
NVTA financial activities are separated into three (3) fund types: 
 

1. Governmental Fund: This fund type accounts for all of the non-trust, non-transit, non-
capital activities of NVTA, also known as the General Fund or Planning Fund.  It 
includes agency administration, salaries, pass through activities, and planning costs.   
 
The Governmental activities Net Position increased by $2,086,051 over the previous 
fiscal year.   This is largely the result of spending planning funds that had accumulated 
over the previous fiscal years.  
 
Pension Funding 
GASB Statement 68 requires future pension obligations to be recognized on the 
Statement of Net Position (also known as a Balance Sheet) with pension details in the 
Notes section of the Financial Statement.  However, the amount on the financial 
statement does not give a clear indication of how the plan is funded.  The widely used 
“Unfunded Pension Liability” amount is not an indication of funding health.  For that 
information, the actuary’s valuation report must be analyzed. 
 
NVTA’s plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the plan’s total pension liability 
was 75.26%, higher than the 73.31% in the previous year and much higher than the 
state-wide average of 70%.  Ideally, a plan should be funded 90-95%, but not 100%, 
which could mean a plan is overfunded and contributions should be used for other 
purposes that could yield a greater rate of return. 
 
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Funding 
As with GASB 68, GASB Statement 75 requires that future OPEB obligations are 
recognized on the Statement of Net Position with OPEB plan details in the Notes 
section of the Financial Statement.  However, the amount on the financial statement 
does not give a clear indication of the funding status of the plan.  A new OPEB plan 
was adopted by the Board with an effective date of July 1, 2019 and the plan is 100% 
funded. 
 
 

 37



NVTA Agenda Letter                 Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
2. Proprietary Fund (or Enterprise Fund): This fund accounts for the financial activity 

of all public transit service programs.  At the end of FY 2019-18, the enterprise fund 
decreased assets by $2,741,000.  The reason for the decrease was mainly 
transactional with accumulated depreciation which is a non-cash charge, but 
recognized as an operating expense. 
 

Farebox Ratio 
 
As part of the annual audit, the farebox ratio is validated to ascertain compliance with the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) statute, which mandates a minimum farebox 
recovery ratio of fifteen percent (15%) in urbanized areas and ten percent (10%) in non-
urbanized areas.  Recent changes to the Transportation Development Act statutes allow 
for the inclusion of local funds to calculate statutory farebox ratio.   
 
California Public Utilities Code (PUC) Section 99268.19 states that: “If fare revenues are 
insufficient to meet the applicable ratio of fare revenues to operating cost required by this 
article, an operator may satisfy that requirement by supplementing its fare revenues with 
local funds.  As used in this section, “local funds” means any nonfederal or non-state 
grant funds or other revenues generated by, earned by, or distributed to an operator.” For 
the Vine Transit system, local funds are comprised of contributions from the City of 
American Canyon, the Town of Yountville, the City of St. Helena, the Calistoga Tourism 
Business Improvement District, and Regional Measure 2 (Route 29). 
 
Vine Transit and American Canyon Transit are required to make a 15% farebox recovery.  
The statutory farebox recovery ratio was 17.01%, 1% lower than the previous fiscal year.  
Without the use of local funds to meet statutory requirements, the farebox ratio generated 
strictly from revenues was 11.83%, which is 1% lower than the previous year of 12.83%. 
 
The combined non-urbanized area services, including Vine Go, the Yountville Trolley, the 
Calistoga Shuttle, the St. Helena Shuttle and the Taxi Scrip Program are required to make 
10% and achieved a 9.63% farebox ratio.  The reason the target was not met is due to 
Vine Go’s increase in operating costs and lower revenues. 

 
NVTA will return an allocation surplus to the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) trust 
account of $1,107,126.  These funds were advanced to fill-in gaps of federal 
appropriations and grant approval delays and are no longer needed for expenses incurred 
in the fiscal year.  The dedicated funds will be available for reallocation in a future period. 

 
3. Fiduciary Funds:  This fund type accounts for the Abandoned Vehicles Abatement 

Authority Trust Fund (AVAA) and the Bay Area Air Quality Management’s (BAAQMD) 
Transportation for Clean Air Fund.  These funds pass through NVTA to other 
governments.  NVTA collects an administration fee from the BAAQMD program up to 
five percent (5%).  At the end of FY 2019-18, the Fiduciary Fund Type shows net 
assets of $824,366 due to the carryover of projects into later years for the TFCA 

 38



NVTA Agenda Letter                 Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
program.  The funds for AVAA have been fully exhausted and will no longer be 
reported in future audits.   

 
Single Audit Report of Uniform Guidance (formerly Office of Management and 
Budget Announcement 133 OMB A-133) 
 
NVTA is required to undergo a Single Audit, known as the Uniform Guidance for receiving 
funds in excess of $750,000.  A Single Audit encompasses an examination of the 
agency’s financial records, financial statements, federal award transactions and 
expenditures, general management of its operations, internal control systems, and federal 
assistance received during the audit period.  Findings during the audit period ending June 
30, 2018: 
 
Financial: There were no financial findings.   
 
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:  There were no findings. 
 
Material Weakness: No material weaknesses were noted. 
 
Recommendations: There were no recommendations noted. 
 
The complete audits are available on request and will be distributed to Board members 
at the meeting.  The financial audit and single audit are also available on NVTA’s website 
at http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Brown Armstrong CPA’s Letter to NVTA’s Board of Directors dated 
         December 23, 2019 (SAS 114) 
      (2) NVTA Audit Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

(3) NVTA Single Audit Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 

 39

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Financial_statements
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Expenditure
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits


ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2

January 15, 2020

 40



 41



 42



 43



ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2

January 15, 2020

 44



 45



 46



 47



 48



 49



 50



 51



 52



 53



 54



 55



 56



 57



 58



 59



 60



 61



 62



 63



 64



 65



 66



 67



 68



 69



 70



 71



 72



 73



 74



 75



 76



 77



 78



 79



 80



 81



 82



 83



 84



 85



 86



 87



 88



 89



 90



 91



 92



 93



 94



 95



 96



 97



 98



 99



 100



 101



 102



 103



 104



 105



 106



 107



 108



 109



 110



 111



 112



 113



 114



 115



 116



 117



 118



 119



 120



 121



 122



ATTACHMENT 3
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2

January 15, 2020

 123



 124



 125



 126



 127



 128



 129



 130



 131



 132



 133



January 15, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Principal Planner 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 20-01 Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute 
the Cooperative Agreement 04-2749 between the State of California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) for the Napa Valley Vine Trail 
Calistoga to St Helena Project 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt Resolution No. 20-01 
(Attachment 1) approving Cooperative Agreement 04-2749 (Attachment 2) with Caltrans 
and authorize the Executive Director, or designee, to sign the Cooperative Agreement for 
an amount not to exceed $440,000 and amendments for the Napa Valley Vine Trail (Vine 
Trail) Calistoga to St. Helena project (Project). 
 
OTHER OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
The Board could decide not to authorize the Cooperative Agreement in which case 
Caltrans would not allow the project to move forward in the state’s right of way. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This Cooperative Agreement is a standard Caltrans document for improvements to the 
State Highway System. Previously, on July 18, 2018 the NVTA Board approved NVTA 
entering into a Cooperative Agreement (“Coop”) with Caltrans for the Vine Trail. This 2018 
Coop was for the Project Initiation Document (PID) phase of the Project only and was 
canceled on August 8, 2019 at Caltrans’ recommendation. Caltrans drafted a new Coop 
(Attachment 2) which is a single more comprehensive agreement which covers Caltrans 

 134

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.3 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
oversight on the entire Calistoga to St. Helena Vine Trail Project from Project Approval 
and Environmental Document through Construction.   
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comments 
3.  Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote  
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes.  Up to $440,000. NVTA is working with Caltrans to 
reduce the cost. 
 
Is it currently budgeted?  No - a budget amended would be required. 
 
Future Fiscal Impact? No.  This covers Caltrans’ oversight costs through the 
construction phase of the Calistoga to St. Helena Vine Trail project. 
 
Consequences if not approved?  The St. Helena to Calistoga section of the Vine Trail will 
not proceed and the Active Transportation Program (ATP) and One Bay Area Grant 2 
(OBAG 2) funds allocated to the project will be forfeited.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1- Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability. 
 
The Vine Trail is a critical project that supports alternative transportation for individuals 
who may not have the income or the ability to drive an automobile. 
 
Goal 2 – Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users. 
 
This segment of the Vine Trail will allow bikers and walkers to safely navigate from St 
Helena to Calistoga on a Class I bike path – separated from automobile traffic. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 
 
 
 
 

 135



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
Agenda Item 11.3 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
NVTA continues to work with the Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition and Caltrans on the St. 
Helena to Calistoga segment of the Vine Trail. The project is now at 65% design and the 
environmental consultant has finalized the Area of Potential Effect (APE) and is working 
on a draft Initial Study Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for CEQA and a 
Categorical Exclusion (CE) for NEPA. NVTA is in the process of finalizing the Design 
Contract with RSA+ within the maximum $1.4 million Board authorization from June 12, 
2019.  NVTA will complete the final design at the end 2020 and start construction in the 
spring of 2021. 
 
This Caltrans Cooperative Agreement process is different from the process for the Oak 
Knoll sections of the Vine Trail because a significant portion of the proposed trail 
alignment is within the Caltrans Right of Way.  The Caltrans process will be administered 
through their Project Management division. The payment to Caltrans under this 
Cooperative Agreement will cover review and approval of the environmental and design 
documents as well as construction oversight and long-term environmental mitigation for 
the project elements within the Caltrans’ right of way. 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 20-01  

(2) Cooperation Agreement 04-2749 

 136



 
 

RESOLUTION No. 20 – 01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 04-2749 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

(CALTRANS) AND THE NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Vine Trail is a proposed 47-mile class 1 path from 
the Vallejo Ferry Terminal to the City of Calistoga, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board wishes to 

build the Napa Valley Vine Trail Calistoga to St Helena project utilizing Caltrans Right of 
Way along State Route 29; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is being proposed that roughly 4 miles of the Calistoga to St. Helena 

Vine Trail segment be constructed within the Caltrans right of way on SR 29; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Caltrans requires the execution of a Cooperation Agreement for all 

transportation projects on the State Highway System; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the NVTA Board hereby authorizes 
the Executive Director to execute and make minor changes to Cooperative Agreement 
04-2749 with the State of California Department of Transportation and Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority.  
 
Passed and Adopted the 15th day of January 2020.  
 
 
______________________ 
Chris Canning, NVTA Chair      Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                Nays: 
 
 
    
 
             Absent: 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.3 

January 15, 2020 

 137



ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

 138



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) i 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT (11-27-19, AH) 

This AGREEMENT, effective on _______________________________, is between the State of 

California, acting through its Department of Transportation, referred to as CALTRANS, and:  

Napa Valley Transportation Authority, a public corporation/entity, referred to hereinafter as 

NVTA. 

An individual signatory agency in this AGREEMENT is referred to as a PARTY. Collectively, the 

signatory agencies in this AGREEMENT are referred to as PARTIES. 

RECITALS 

1. PARTIES are authorized to enter into a cooperative agreement for improvements to the State

Highway System per the California Streets and Highways Code, Sections 114 and 130.

2. For the purpose of this AGREEMENT, Design and construction of a 9.4 miles long Class I

bicycle and pedestrian path from St. Helena to Calistoga in Napa County. will be referred to

hereinafter as PROJECT.  The PROJECT scope of work is defined in the project initiation and

approval documents (e.g. Project Study Report, Permit Engineering Evaluation Report, or

Project Report).

3. All obligations and responsibilities assigned in this AGREEMENT to complete the following

PROJECT COMPONENTS will be referred to hereinafter as WORK:

• PROJECT APPROVAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT (PA&ED)

• PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND ESTIMATE (PS&E)

• RIGHT-OF-WAY

• CONSTRUCTION

Each PROJECT COMPONENT is defined in the CALTRANS Workplan Standards Guide as a 

distinct group of activities/products in the project planning and development process.  

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 11.3

January 15, 2020

 139



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 2 

4. The term AGREEMENT, as used herein, includes this document and any attachments, 

exhibits, and amendments.  

This AGREEMENT is separate from and does not modify or replace any other cooperative 

agreement or memorandum of understanding between the PARTIES regarding the PROJECT. 

PARTIES intend this AGREEMENT to be their final expression that supersedes any oral 

understanding or writings pertaining to the WORK.  The requirements of this AGREEMENT 

will preside over any conflicting requirements in any documents that are made an express part 

of this AGREEMENT. 

If any provisions in this AGREEMENT are found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be, or 

are in fact, illegal, inoperative, or unenforceable, those provisions do not render any or all other 

AGREEMENT provisions invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable, and those provisions will be 

automatically severed from this AGREEMENT. 

Except as otherwise provided in the AGREEMENT, PARTIES will execute a written 

amendment if there are any changes to the terms of this AGREEMENT. 

PARTIES agree to sign a CLOSURE STATEMENT to terminate this AGREEMENT.  

However, all indemnification, document retention, audit, claims, environmental commitment, 

legal challenge, maintenance and ownership articles will remain in effect until terminated or 

modified in writing by mutual agreement or expire by the statute of limitations. 

5. The following work associated with this PROJECT has been completed or is in progress: 

• NVTA completed several environmental and traffic technical studies and the 35% project 

plans. 

6. In this AGREEMENT capitalized words represent defined terms, initialisms, or acronyms. 

7. PARTIES hereby set forth the terms, covenants, and conditions of this AGREEMENT. 

 140



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 3 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

Sponsorship 

8. A SPONSOR is responsible for establishing the scope of the PROJECT and securing the 

financial resources to fund the WORK.  A SPONSOR is responsible for securing additional 

funds when necessary or implementing PROJECT changes to ensure the WORK can be 

completed with the funds obligated in this AGREEMENT.  

PROJECT changes, as described in the CALTRANS Project Development Procedures Manual, 

will be approved by CALTRANS as the owner/operator of the State Highway System.  

9. NVTA is the SPONSOR for the WORK in this AGREEMENT. 

Implementing Agency 

10. The IMPLEMENTING AGENCY is the PARTY responsible for managing the scope, cost, 

schedule, and quality of the work activities and products of a PROJECT COMPONENT. 

• NVTA is the Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA&ED) 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY.   

PA&ED includes the completion of the Final Environmental Document and the Project 

Report (documenting the project alternative selection). 

• NVTA is the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) IMPLEMENTING AGENCY.   

PS&E includes the development of the plans, specifications, and estimate; obtaining any 

resource agency permits; and the advertisement/award of the construction contract.   

• NVTA is the RIGHT OF WAY IMPLEMENTING AGENCY    

RIGHT OF WAY includes coordination with utility owners for the protection, removal, 

or relocation of utilities; the acquisition of right-of-way interests; and post-construction 

work such as right-of-way monumentation/recordation, relinquishments/vacations, and 

excess land transactions.  The RIGHT OF WAY component budget identifies the cost of 

the capital costs of right-of-way acquisition (RIGHT-OF-WAY CAPITAL) and the cost 

of the staff work in support of the acquisition (RIGHT-OF-WAY SUPPORT).  

• NVTA is the CONSTRUCTION IMPLEMENTING AGENCY.   

 141



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 4 

CONSTRUCTION includes construction contract administration, surveying/staking, 

inspection, quality assurance, and assuring regulatory compliance.  The 

CONSTRUCTION component budget identifies the capital costs of the construction 

contract/furnished materials (CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL) and the cost of the staff 

work in support of the construction contract administration (CONSTRUCTION 

SUPPORT).  

11. The IMPLEMENTING AGENCY for a PROJECT COMPONENT will provide a Quality 

Management Plan (QMP) for the WORK in that component.  The QMP describes the 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY’s quality policy and how it will be used.  The QMP will include 

a process for resolving disputes between the PARTIES at the team level.  The QMP is subject 

to CALTRANS review and approval.  

12. Any PARTY responsible for completing WORK will make its personnel and consultants that 

prepare WORK available to help resolve WORK-related problems and changes for the entire 

duration of the PROJECT including PROJECT work that may occur under separate 

agreements.   

Funding 

13. Funding sources, PARTIES committing funds, funding amounts, and invoicing/payment 

details are documented in the Funding Summary section of this AGREEMENT. 

PARTIES will amend this AGREEMENT by updating and replacing the Funding Summary, in 

its entirety, each time the funding details change. Funding Summary replacements will be 

executed by a legally authorized representative of the respective PARTIES. The most current 

fully executed Funding Summary supersedes any previous Funding Summary created for this 

AGREEMENT. 

14. PARTIES will not be reimbursed for costs beyond the funds obligated in this AGREEMENT. 

15. Unless otherwise documented in the Funding Summary, overall liability for project costs 

within a PROJECT COMPONENT will be in proportion to the amount contributed to that 

PROJECT COMPONENT by each fund type. 

16. Unless otherwise documented in the Funding Summary, any savings recognized within a 

PROJECT COMPONENT will be credited or reimbursed, when allowed by policy or law, in 

proportion to the amount contributed to that PROJECT COMPONENT by each fund type. 

 142



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 5 

17. WORK costs, except those that are specifically excluded in this AGREEMENT, are to be paid 

from the funds obligated in the Funding Summary. Costs that are specifically excluded from 

the funds obligated in this AGREEMENT are to be paid by the PARTY incurring the costs 

from funds that are independent of this AGREEMENT. 

CALTRANS’ Quality Management  

18. CALTRANS, as the owner/operator of the State Highway System (SHS), will perform quality 

management work including Independent Quality Assurance (IQA) and owner/operator 

approvals for the portions of WORK within the existing and proposed SHS right-of-way.  

19. CALTRANS’ Independent Quality Assurance (IQA) efforts are to ensure that NVTA's quality 

assurance results in WORK that is in accordance with the applicable standards and the 

PROJECT’s quality management plan (QMP).  An IQA does not include any efforts necessary 

to develop or deliver WORK or any validation by verifying or rechecking WORK.  

When CALTRANS performs IQA it does so for its own benefit. No one can assign liability to 

CALTRANS due to its IQA.  

20. CALTRANS, as the owner/operator of the State Highway System, will approve WORK 

products in accordance with CALTRANS policies and guidance and as indicated in this 

AGREEMENT.  

21. Per National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) assignment and California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) statutes, CALTRANS will perform environmental document quality 

control and NEPA assignment review procedures for environmental documentation.  

CALTRANS quality control and quality assurance procedures for all environmental documents 

are described in the NEPA Assignments memorandums, available at 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/ser/memos.htm#LinkTarget_705.  This also includes the independent 

judgement analysis and determination under CEQA that the environmental documentation 

meets CEQA requirements. 

22. NVTA will provide WORK-related products and supporting documentation upon 

CALTRANS’ request for the purpose of CALTRANS’ quality management work.  

 143



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 6 

23. NVTA, including any employee, agent, consultant or sub-consultant retained by the NVTA, 

shall implement uniform document control policies necessary to retain all records and 

electronically stored information associated with the WORK, including but not limited to those 

records identified in California Public Resources Code, Section 21167.6, and including email 

and attachments, in a manner consistent with the CALTRANS Uniform Filing System and the 

“Final Caltrans Environmental Records Retention Policy”, available 

at http://www.dot.ca.gov/ser/vol1/sec6/ch38nepa/pdf/cal-env-rec-retention-policy.pdf.  These 

records, along with an index of the records, shall be provided to CALTRANS within 60 days 

of CALTRANS’ written request. 

CEQA/NEPA Lead Agency 

24. NVTA is the CEQA Lead Agency for the PROJECT. 

25. CALTRANS is a CEQA Responsible Agency for the PROJECT.  

26. CALTRANS is the NEPA Lead Agency for the PROJECT.  

Environmental Permits, Approvals and Agreements 

27. PARTIES will comply with the commitments and conditions set forth in the environmental 

documentation, environmental permits, approvals, and applicable agreements as those 

commitments and conditions apply to each PARTY’S responsibilities in this AGREEMENT.  

28. Unless otherwise assigned in this AGREEMENT, the IMPLEMENTING AGENCY for a 

PROJECT COMPONENT is responsible for all PROJECT COMPONENT WORK associated 

with coordinating, obtaining, implementing, renewing, and amending the PROJECT permits, 

agreements, and approvals whether they are identified in the planned project scope of work or 

become necessary in the course of completing the PROJECT.   

 144



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 7 

29. It is expected that the PROJECT requires the following environmental permits/approvals: 

ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS/REQUIREMENTS 

404, US Army Corps Of Engineers 

401, Regional Water Quality Control Board 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), State Water Resources Control 
Board 

State Waste Discharge Requirements (Porter Cologne), Regional Water Quality Control Board 

1602 California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

2080.1 California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

2080 (B) California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

 

Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA&ED) 

30. As the PA&ED IMPLEMENTING AGENCY, NVTA is responsible for all PA&ED WORK 

except those activities and responsibilities that are assigned to another PARTY and those 

activities that are excluded under this AGREEMENT. 

31. NVTA will be responsible for completing the following PA&ED activities: 

CALTRANS Work Breakdown Structure Identifier (If Applicable) 
AGREEMENT 

Funded Cost 

100.10.10.xx Quality Management Yes 

165.15.15.xx Essential Fish Habitat Consultation Yes 

165.15.15.xx Section 7 Consultation Yes 

165.25.25 Approval to Circulate Resolution Yes 

180.10.05.45 Section 7 Consultation Yes 

  

 

32. Any PARTY preparing environmental documentation, including studies and reports, will 

ensure that qualified personnel remain available to help resolve environmental issues and 

perform any necessary work to ensure that the PROJECT remains in environmental 

compliance. 

33. NVTA will provide written notice of the initiation of environmental studies to the NEPA Lead 

Agency (CALTRANS) prior to completing any other PA&ED phase work. 

 145



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 8 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

34. The CEQA Lead Agency will determine the type of CEQA documentation and will cause that 

documentation to be prepared in accordance with CEQA requirements. 

35. Any PARTY involved in the preparation of CEQA documentation will prepare the 

documentation to meet CEQA requirements and follow the CEQA Lead Agency’s standards 

that apply to the CEQA process. 

36. CALTRANS is a CEQA Responsible Agency for the PROJECT and will review, comment, 

and concur on all environmental documentation (including, but not limited to, studies, reports, 

public notices, and public meeting materials, determinations, administrative drafts, and final 

environmental documents) at appropriate stages of development prior to approval and public 

availability. 

37. Any PARTY preparing any portion of the CEQA documentation, including any studies and 

reports, will submit that portion of the documentation to the CEQA Lead Agency for review, 

comment, and approval at appropriate stages of development prior to public availability. 

38. If the CEQA Lead Agency makes any changes to the CEQA documentation, the CEQA Lead 

Agency will allow CALTRANS to review, comment, and concur on those changes prior to the 

CEQA Lead Agency’s approval at appropriate stages of development prior to public 

availability. 

39. If the CEQA Lead Agency makes any changes to CEQA-related public notices, then the CEQA 

Lead Agency will allow CALTRANS to review, comment, and concur on those changes prior 

to publication and circulation. 

40. The CEQA Lead Agency will attend all CEQA-related public meetings. 

 146



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 9 

41. If a PARTY who is not the CEQA Lead Agency holds a public meeting about the PROJECT, 

that PARTY must clearly state its role in the PROJECT and the identity of the CEQA Lead 

Agency on all meeting publications.  All meeting publications must also inform the attendees 

that public comments collected at the meetings are not part of the CEQA public review 

process. 

That PARTY will submit all meeting advertisements, agendas, exhibits, handouts, and 

materials to the CEQA Lead Agency for review, comment, and approval at least ten (10) 

working days prior to publication or use. If that PARTY makes any changes to the materials, it 

will allow the CEQA Lead Agency to review, comment on, and approve those changes at least 

three (3) working days prior to the public meeting date. 

The CEQA Lead Agency maintains final editorial control with respect to text or graphics that 

could lead to public confusion over CEQA-related roles and responsibilities. 

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 

42. Pursuant to Chapter 3 of Title 23, United States Code (23 U.S.C. 326) and 23 U.S.C. 327, 

CALTRANS is the NEPA Lead Agency for the PROJECT.  CALTRANS is responsible for 

NEPA compliance, will determine the type of NEPA documentation, and will cause that 

documentation to be prepared in accordance with NEPA requirements. 

CALTRANS, as the NEPA Lead Agency for PROJECT, will review, comment, and approve 

all environmental documentation (including, but not limited to, studies, reports, public notices, 

and public meeting materials, determinations, administrative drafts, and final environmental 

documents) at appropriate stages of development prior to approval and public availability. 

When required as NEPA Lead Agency, CALTRANS will conduct consultation and 

coordination and obtain, renew, or amend approvals pursuant to the Federal Endangered 

Species Act, and Essential Fish Habitat. 

When required as NEPA Lead Agency, CALTRANS will conduct consultation and 

coordination approvals pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. 

43. Any PARTY involved in the preparation of NEPA documentation will follow FHWA and 

CALTRANS standards that apply to the NEPA process including, but not limited to, the 

guidance provided in the FHWA Environmental Guidebook (available at 

www.fhwa.dot.gov/hep/index.htm) and the CALTRANS Standard Environmental Reference. 

 147



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 10 

44. Any PARTY preparing any portion of the NEPA documentation (including, but not limited to, 

studies, reports, public notices, and public meeting materials, determinations, administrative 

drafts, and final environmental documents) will submit that portion of the documentation to 

CALTRANS for CALTRANS’ review, comment, and approval prior to public availability. 

45. NVTA will prepare, publicize, and circulate all NEPA-related public notices, except Federal 

Register notices.  NVTA will submit all notices to CALTRANS for CALTRANS’ review, 

comment, and approval prior to publication and circulation. 

CALTRANS will work with the appropriate federal agency to publish notices in the Federal 

Register. 

46. The NEPA Lead Agency will attend all NEPA-related public meetings.  

47. NVTA will submit all NEPA-related public meeting materials to CALTRANS for 

CALTRANS’ review, comment, and approval at least ten (10) working days prior to the public 

meeting date.   

48. If a PARTY who is not the NEPA Lead Agency holds a public meeting about the PROJECT, 

that PARTY must clearly state its role in the PROJECT and the identity of the NEPA Lead 

Agency on all meeting publications.  All meeting publications must also inform the attendees 

that public comments collected at the meetings are not part of the NEPA public review process. 

That PARTY will submit all meeting advertisements, agendas, exhibits, handouts, and 

materials to the NEPA Lead Agency for review, comment, and approval at least ten (10) 

working days prior to publication or use. If that PARTY makes any changes to the materials, it 

will allow the NEPA Lead Agency to review, comment on, and approve those changes at least 

three (3) working days prior to the public meeting date. 

The NEPA Lead Agency has final approval authority with respect to text or graphics that could 

lead to public confusion over NEPA-related roles and responsibilities. 

49. NVTA will ensure that the PROJECT is included in the approved Federal Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Program (FSTIP) prior to the NEPA Lead Agency’s approval of 

the environmental document.   

Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) 

50. As the PS&E IMPLEMENTING AGENCY, NVTA is responsible for all PS&E WORK except 

those activities and responsibilities that are assigned to another PARTY and those activities 

that are excluded under this AGREEMENT. 

 148



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 11 

51. CALTRANS will be responsible for completing the following PS&E activities: 

CALTRANS Work Breakdown Structure Identifier (If Applicable) 
AGREEMENT 

Funded Cost 

100.15.10.xx Quality Management No 

 

52. NVTA will prepare Utility Conflict Maps identifying the accommodation, protection, 

relocation, or removal of any existing utility facilities that conflict with construction of the 

PROJECT or that violate CALTRANS’ encroachment policy. 

NVTA will provide CALTRANS a copy of Utility Conflict Maps for CALTRANS' 

concurrence prior to issuing the Notices to Owner and executing the utility agreement.  All 

utility conflicts will be addressed in the PROJECT plans, specifications, and estimate. 

53. NVTA will determine the cost to positively identify and locate, accommodate, protect, 

relocate, or remove any utility facilities whether inside or outside the State Highway System 

right-of-way in accordance with federal and California laws and regulations, and CALTRANS’ 

policies, procedures, standards, practices, and applicable agreements including but not limited 

to Freeway Master Contracts. 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 

54. As the RIGHT-OF-WAY IMPLEMENTING AGENCY, NVTA is responsible for all RIGHT-

OF-WAY WORK except those activities and responsibilities that are assigned to another 

PARTY and those activities that are excluded under this AGREEMENT.   

55. CALTRANS will be responsible for completing the following RIGHT-OF-WAY activities: 

CALTRANS Work Breakdown Structure Identifier (If Applicable) 
AGREEMENT 

Funded Cost 

100.25.10.xx Quality Management No 

 

56. The selection of personnel performing RIGHT-OF-WAY WORK will be in accordance with 

federal and California laws and regulations, and CALTRANS’ policies, procedures, standards, 

practices, and applicable agreements. 

57. NVTA will make all necessary arrangements with utility owners for the timely 

accommodation, protection, relocation, or removal of any existing utility facilities that conflict 

with construction of the PROJECT or that violate CALTRANS’ encroachment policy.   

 149



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 12 

58. NVTA will provide CALTRANS a copy of conflict maps, relocation plans, proposed notices to 

owner, reports of investigation, and utility agreements (if applicable) for CALTRANS' 

concurrence prior to issuing the notices to owner and executing the utility agreement.  All 

utility conflicts will be fully addressed prior to Right-of-Way Certification and all 

arrangements for the protection, relocation, or removal of all conflicting facilities will be 

completed prior to construction contract award and included in the PROJECT plans, 

specifications, and estimate. 

59. NVTA will provide a land surveyor licensed in the State of California to be responsible for 

surveying and right-of-way engineering. All survey and right-of-way engineering documents 

will bear the professional seal, certificate number, registration classification, expiration date of 

certificate, and signature of the responsible surveyor.  

60. NVTA will hear and adopt Resolutions of Necessity when authorized to do so by law or will 

work with local agencies having jurisdiction and authorized under the law to hear and adopt 

Resolutions of Necessity. 

NVTA will conduct and document Condemnation Evaluation and Condemnation Panel Review 

meetings as required in accordance with CALTRANS policy and guidance.  CALTRANS will 

be notified in advance of any Condemnation Panel Review meetings.  

61. If NVTA acquires any right-of-way to be incorporated into the State Highway System, NVTA 

will first acquire in its own name.  

If CALTRANS acquires any right-of-way, CALTRANS will first acquire in NVTA's name. 

Title to the State Highway System right-of-way will ultimately be vested in the State.  

CALTRANS’ acceptance of title will occur after the Right-of-Way Closeout activities are 

complete. 

62. NVTA will utilize a public agency currently qualified by CALTRANS or a properly licensed 

consultant for all RIGHT-OF-WAY activities. A qualified right-of-way agent will administer 

all right-of-way consultant contracts. 

NVTA will submit a draft Right-of-Way Certification to CALTRANS six weeks prior to the 

scheduled Right-of-Way Certification milestone date for review. 

NVTA will submit a final Right-of-Way Certification to CALTRANS for approval prior to the 

advertising the construction contract.  

63. Physical and legal possession of the right-of-way must be completed prior to advertising the 

construction contract, unless PARTIES mutually agree to other arrangements in writing. 

 150



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 13 

64. CALTRANS’ acceptance of right-of-way title is subject to review of an Updated Preliminary 

Title Report provided by NVTA verifying that the title is free of all encumbrances and liens. 

Upon acceptance, NVTA will provide CALTRANS with a Policy of Title Insurance in 

CALTRANS’ name.  

65. Right-of-way conveyances must be completed prior to WORK completion unless PARTIES 

mutually agree to other arrangements in writing.  

CONSTRUCTION 

66. As the CONSTRUCTION IMPLEMENTING AGENCY, NVTA is responsible for all 

CONSTRUCTION WORK except those activities and responsibilities that are assigned to 

another PARTY and those activities that are excluded under this AGREEMENT.   

67. CALTRANS will be responsible for completing the following CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 

activities: 

CALTRANS Work Breakdown Structure Identifier (If Applicable) 
AGREEMENT 

Funded Cost 

100.20.10.xx Quality Management No 

 

68. NVTA will include a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) utilization goal in the 

PROJECT construction contract(s) in accordance with the Local Assistance Procedures 

Manual.  NVTA will award the construction contract to the lowest responsive bidder who 

makes a Good Faith Effort to meet the DBE goal. 

69. CALTRANS will not issue an encroachment permit to NVTA for construction work until the 

following conditions are met: 

• CALTRANS accepts the final plans, specifications, and estimate 

• CALTRANS accepts the Right-of-Way Certification 

• Any new or amended maintenance agreement required for the WORK are executed. 

70. NVTA will require the construction contractor to furnish payment and performance bonds 

naming NVTA as obligee, and CALTRANS as additional obligee, and to carry liability 

insurance in accordance with CALTRANS Standard Specifications. 

 151



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 14 

71. NVTA will advertise, open bids, award, and approve the construction contract in accordance 

with the California Public Contract Code and the California Labor Code.  By accepting 

responsibility to advertise and award the construction contract, NVTA also accepts 

responsibility to administer the construction contract. 

72. If the lowest responsible construction contract bid is greater than the funding commitment to 

CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL, PARTIES must agree in writing on a course of action within 

fifteen (15) working days.  If no agreement is reached within fifteen (15) work days the 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY will not award the construction contract. 

73. CALTRANS will not issue an encroachment permit to NVTA's construction contractor until 

CALTRANS accepts: 

• The payment and performance bonds 

• The CONSTRUCTION Quality Management Plan 

74. The CONSTRUCTION Quality Management Plan (QMP) will describe how construction 

material verification and workmanship inspections will be performed at manufacturing sources 

and the PROJECT job-site.  The construction material and source inspection QMP is subject to 

review and approval by the State Materials Engineer. 

75. The CONSTRUCTION Quality Management Plan will address the radiation safety 

requirements of the California Code of Regulations 17 CCR § 30346 when the work requires 

Gamma-Gamma Logging acceptance testing for Cast in Drilled Hole (CIDH) pile or whenever 

else it is applicable.  In accordance with these regulations NVTA, as the "well operator", will 

have a written agreement with any consultant or external entity performing these tests.   

76. NVTA will provide a Resident Engineer and CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT staff that are 

independent of the construction contractor.  The Resident Engineer will be a Civil Engineer, 

licensed in the State of California, who is responsible for construction contract administration 

activities. 

77. NVTA will provide a landscape architect who will be responsible for all landscaping activities 

within the State Highway System. 

 152



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 15 

78. NVTA will implement changes to the construction contract through Change Orders.  PARTIES 

will review and concur on all Change Orders over $50,000, or as indicated in paragraph 79 of 

this agreement, as appropriate. 

79. CALTRANS will review and concur with: 

• Change Orders affecting public safety, public convenience, protected environmental 

resources, the preservation of property, all design and specification changes, and all 

major changes as defined in the CALTRANS Construction Manual. These Change 

Orders must receive written concurrence by CALTRANS prior to implementation. 

• The Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) or the Water Pollution Control Plan 

(WPCP). 

80. NVTA will administer and process all construction contract claims pursuant to the 

requirements set forth under Public Contract Code, Section 9204. CALTRANS will provide 

Independent Quality Assurance for the claims process. 

81. NVTA is designated as the Legally Responsible Person pursuant to the Construction General 

Permit, State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Order Number 2009-0009-DWQ, as 

defined in Appendix 5, Glossary, and assumes all roles and responsibilities assigned to the 

Legally Responsible Person as mandated by the Construction General Permit.  NVTA is 

required to comply with the CALTRANS MS4 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System (NPDES) permit for all work within the State Highway System. 

82. As the CONSTRUCTION IMPLEMENTING AGENCY, NVTA is responsible for 

maintenance of the State Highway System (SHS) within the PROJECT limits as part of the 

construction contract until the following conditions are met: 

• Any required maintenance agreements are executed for the portions of SHS for which 

relief of maintenance is to be granted. 

• CALTRANS approves a request from NVTA for relief from maintenance of the 

PROJECT or a portion thereof. 

83. PARTIES confirm that, upon WORK completion, PARTIES will execute a new Maintenance 

Agreement stipulating the terms and conditions under which the PARTY responsible for   

maintenance of the PROJECT area will carry out that responsibility.  

 153



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 16 

84. Upon WORK completion, ownership and title to all materials and equipment constructed or 

installed for the operation and/or maintenance of the State Highway System (SHS) within the 

SHS right-of-way as part of the WORK become the property of CALTRANS, except: 

• ***Phase con ownership TE*** will become the property of NVTA 

CALTRANS and NVTA will develop and execute a new or amended maintenance 

agreement for this property prior to WORK completion.  

Property owners will operate, maintain, relocate, remove, and protect their property within the 

State Highway system at their own expense including removing, relocating, or protecting said 

property when required for future improvements or whenever else required by CALTRANS.  

CALTRANS will assume no responsibility for the property which it does not own.  Property 

owners will defend, indemnify, and save harmless CALTRANS and all of its officers and 

employees from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind and description brought forth 

under, including, but not limited to, tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation, or other 

theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of said property. 

85. Within one hundred eighty (180) calendar days following the completion and acceptance of the 

PROJECT construction contract, NVTA will furnish CALTRANS with a complete set of “As-

Built” plans and Change Orders, including any changes authorized by CALTRANS, on a CD 

ROM and in accordance with CALTRANS’ then current CADD User’s Manual (Section 4.3), 

Plans Preparation Manual, and CALTRANS practice.  The plans will have the Resident 

Engineer’s name, contract number, and construction contract acceptance date printed on each 

plan sheet, and with the Resident Engineer’s signature only on the title sheet.  The As-Built 

plans will be in Microstation DGN format, version 7.0 or later.  In addition, NVTA will 

provide one set of As-Built plans and addenda in TIFF format. 

The submittal must also include all CALTRANS requested contract records, and land survey 

documents. The land survey documents include monument preservation documents and records 

of surveys prepared to satisfy the requirements of the California Land Surveyors Act (Business 

and Professions Code, Sections 8700 – 8805). Copies of survey documents and Records of 

Surveys filed in accordance with Business & Professions Code, Sections 8762 and 8771, will 

contain the filing information provided by the county in which filed. 

Schedule 

86. PARTIES will manage the WORK schedule to ensure the timely use of obligated funds and to 

ensure compliance with any environmental permits, right-of-way agreements, construction 

contracts, and any other commitments.  PARTIES will communicate schedule risks or changes 

as soon as they are identified and will actively manage and mitigate schedule risks. 

 154



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 17 

87. The IMPLEMENTING AGENCY for each PROJECT COMPONENT will furnish PARTIES 

with written monthly progress reports during the completion of the WORK.  

Additional Provisions 

Standards 

88. PARTIES will perform all WORK in accordance with federal and California laws, regulations, 

and standards; Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) standards; and CALTRANS 

standards.  CALTRANS standards include, but are not limited to, the guidance provided in the: 

• CADD Users Manual 

• CALTRANS policies and directives  

• Plans Preparation Manual 

• Project Development Procedures Manual (PDPM) 

• Workplan Standards Guide  

• Standard Environmental Reference  

• Highway Design Manual  

• Right of Way Manual  

• Construction Manual  

• Construction Manual Supplement for Local Agency Resident Engineers   

• Local Agency Structure Representative Guidelines   

Noncompliant Work 

89. CALTRANS retains the right to reject noncompliant WORK.  NVTA agrees to suspend 

WORK upon request by CALTRANS for the purpose of protecting public safety, preserving 

property rights, and ensuring that all WORK is in the best interest of the State Highway 

System. 

Qualifications 

90. Each PARTY will ensure that personnel participating in WORK are appropriately qualified or 

licensed to perform the tasks assigned to them.  

 155



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 18 

Consultant Selection 

91. NVTA will invite CALTRANS to participate in the selection of any consultants that participate 

in the WORK.   

Encroachment Permits 

92. CALTRANS will issue, upon proper application, the encroachment permits required for 

WORK within State Highway System (SHS) right-of-way.  NVTA, their contractors, 

consultants, agents and utility owners will not work within the SHS right-of-way without an 

encroachment permit issued in their name.  CALTRANS will provide encroachment permits to 

NVTA, their contractors, consultants, and agents at no cost.  CALTRANS will provide 

encroachment permits to utility owners at no cost.  If the encroachment permit and this 

AGREEMENT conflict, the requirements of this AGREEMENT will prevail. 

93. The IMPLEMENTING AGENCY for a PROJECT COMPONENT will coordinate, prepare, 

obtain, implement, renew, and amend any encroachment permits needed to complete the 

WORK. 

Protected Resources 

94. If any PARTY discovers unanticipated cultural, archaeological, paleontological, or other 

protected resources during WORK, all WORK in that area will stop and that PARTY will 

notify all PARTIES within 24 hours of discovery. WORK may only resume after a qualified 

professional has evaluated the nature and significance of the discovery and CALTRANS 

approves a plan for its removal or protection. 

Disclosures 

95. PARTIES will hold all administrative drafts and administrative final reports, studies, materials, 

and documentation relied upon, produced, created, or utilized for the WORK in confidence to 

the extent permitted by law and where applicable, the provisions of California Government 

Code, Section 6254.5(e) will protect the confidentiality of such documents in the event that 

said documents are shared between PARTIES. 

PARTIES will not distribute, release, or share said documents with anyone other than 

employees, agents, and consultants who require access to complete the WORK without the 

written consent of the PARTY authorized to release them, unless required or authorized to do 

so by law. 

 156



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 19 

96. If a PARTY receives a public records request pertaining to the WORK, that PARTY will 

notify PARTIES within five (5) working days of receipt and make PARTIES aware of any 

disclosed public documents. PARTIES will consult with each other prior to the release of any 

public documents related to the WORK. 

Hazardous Materials 

97. HM-1 is hazardous material (including, but not limited to, hazardous waste) that may require 

removal and disposal pursuant to federal or state law, irrespective of whether it is disturbed by 

the PROJECT or not. 

HM-2 is hazardous material (including, but not limited to, hazardous waste) that may require 

removal and disposal pursuant to federal or state law only if disturbed by the PROJECT.   

The management activities related to HM-1 and HM-2, including and without limitation, any 

necessary manifest requirements and disposal facility designations are referred to herein as 

HM-1 MANAGEMENT and HM-2 MANAGEMENT respectively. 

98. If HM-1 or HM-2 is found the discovering PARTY will immediately notify all other 

PARTIES. 

99. CALTRANS, independent of the PROJECT, is responsible for any HM-1 found within the 

existing State Highway System right-of-way.  CALTRANS will undertake, or cause to be 

undertaken, HM-1 MANAGEMENT with minimum impact to the PROJECT schedule. 

CALTRANS will pay, or cause to be paid, the cost of HM-1 MANAGEMENT for HM-1 

found within the existing State Highway System right-of-way with funds that are independent 

of the funds obligated in this AGREEMENT. 

100. If HM-1 is found within the PROJECT limits and outside the existing State Highway System 

right-of-way, responsibility for such HM-1 rests with the owner(s) of the parcel(s) on which 

the HM-1 is found.  NVTA, in concert with the local agency having land use jurisdiction, will 

ensure that HM-1 MANAGEMENT is undertaken with minimum impact to PROJECT 

schedule. 

The cost of HM-1 MANAGEMENT for HM-1 found within the PROJECT limits and outside 

the existing State Highway System right-of-way will be paid from funds that are independent 

of the funds obligated in this AGREEMENT and will be the responsibility of the owner(s) of 

the parcel(s) where the HM-1 is located. 

 157



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 20 

101. NVTA and CALTRANS will comply with the Soil Management Agreement for Aerially 

Deposited Lead Contaminated Soils (Soil Management Agreement) executed between 

CALTRANS and the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). Under 

Section 3.2 of the Soil Management Agreement, CALTRANS and NVTA each retain joint and 

severable liability for noncompliance with the provisions of the Soil Management Agreement. 

NVTA will assume all responsibilities assigned to CALTRANS in the Soil Management 

Agreement during PROJECT COMPONENTS for which they are the IMPLEMENTING 

AGENCY except for final placement and burial of soil within the State right-of-way, per 

Section 4.5 of the Soil Management Agreement, which is subject to CALTRANS concurrence 

and reporting to DTSC which will be performed by CALTRANS. 

102. CALTRANS’ acquisition or acceptance of title to any property on which any HM-1 or HM-2 is 

found will proceed in accordance with CALTRANS’ policy on such acquisition. 

Claims 

103. Any PARTY that is responsible for completing WORK may accept, reject, compromise, settle, 

or litigate claims arising from the WORK without concurrence from the other PARTY. 

104. PARTIES will confer on any claim that may affect the WORK or PARTIES’ liability or 

responsibility under this AGREEMENT in order to retain resolution possibilities for potential 

future claims. No PARTY will prejudice the rights of another PARTY until after PARTIES 

confer on the claim. 

105. If the WORK expends state or federal funds, each PARTY will comply with the Federal 

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 

Awards of 2 CFR, Part 200.  PARTIES will ensure that any for-profit consultant hired to 

participate in the WORK will comply with the requirements in 48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31.  

When state or federal funds are expended on the WORK these principles and requirements 

apply to all funding types included in this AGREEMENT.  

Accounting and Audits 

106. PARTIES will maintain, and will ensure that any consultant hired by PARTIES to participate 

in WORK will maintain, a financial management system that conforms to Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles (GAAP), and that can properly accumulate and segregate incurred 

PROJECT costs and billings. 

 158



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 21 

107. PARTIES will maintain and make available to each other all WORK-related documents, 

including financial data, during the term of this AGREEMENT. 

PARTIES will retain all WORK-related records for three (3) years after the final voucher. 

PARTIES will require that any consultants hired to participate in the WORK will comply with 

this Article. 

108. PARTIES have the right to audit each other in accordance with generally accepted 

governmental audit standards. 

CALTRANS, the State Auditor, FHWA (if the PROJECT utilizes federal funds), and NVTA 

will have access to all WORK -related records of each PARTY, and any consultant hired by a 

PARTY to participate in WORK, for audit, examination, excerpt, or transcription. 

The examination of any records will take place in the offices and locations where said records 

are generated and/or stored and will be accomplished during reasonable hours of operation. 

The auditing PARTY will be permitted to make copies of any WORK-related records needed 

for the audit. 

The audited PARTY will review the draft audit, findings, and recommendations, and provide 

written comments within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt. 

Upon completion of the final audit, PARTIES have forty-five (45) calendar days to refund or 

invoice as necessary in order to satisfy the obligation of the audit. 

Any audit dispute not resolved by PARTIES is subject to mediation.  Mediation will follow the 

process described in the General Conditions section of this AGREEMENT. 

109. If the WORK expends state or federal funds, each PARTY will undergo an annual audit in 

accordance with the Single Audit Act in the Federal Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards as defined in 2 CFR, Part 200. 

110. When a PARTY reimburses a consultant for WORK with state or federal funds, the 

procurement of the consultant and the consultant overhead costs will be in accordance with the 

Local Assistance Procedures Manual, Chapter 10.   

Interruption of Work 

111. If WORK stops for any reason, IMPLEMENTING AGENCY will place the PROJECT right-

of-way in a safe and operable condition acceptable to CALTRANS. 

 159



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 22 

112. If WORK stops for any reason, each PARTY will continue with environmental commitments 

included in the environmental documentation, permits, agreements, or approvals that are in 

effect at the time that WORK stops, and will keep the PROJECT in environmental compliance 

until WORK resumes. 

Penalties, Judgements and Settlements 

113. The cost of awards, judgements, or settlements generated by the WORK are to be paid from 

the funds obligated in this AGREEMENT. 

114. The cost of legal challenges to the environmental process or documentation may be paid from 

the funds obligated in this AGREEMENT. 

115. Any PARTY whose action or lack of action causes the levy of fines, interest, or penalties will 

indemnify and hold all other PARTIES harmless per the terms of this AGREEMENT. 

Project Files 

116. NVTA will furnish CALTRANS with the Project History Files related to the PROJECT 

facilities on State Highway System within sixty (60) days following the completion of each 

PROJECT COMPONENT.  NVTA will prepare the Project History File in accordance with the 

Project Development Procedures Manual, Chapter 7.  All material will be submitted neatly in a 

three-ring binder and on a CD ROM in PDF format. 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

Venue 

117. PARTIES understand that this AGREEMENT is in accordance with and governed by the 

Constitution and laws of the State of California. This AGREEMENT will be enforceable in the 

State of California. Any PARTY initiating legal action arising from this AGREEMENT will 

file and maintain that legal action in the Superior Court of the county in which the 

CALTRANS district office that is signatory to this AGREEMENT resides, or in the Superior 

Court of the county in which the PROJECT is physically located. 

Exemptions 

118. All CALTRANS’ obligations under this AGREEMENT are subject to the appropriation of 

resources by the Legislature, the State Budget Act authority, programming and allocation of 

funds by the California Transportation Commission (CTC). 

 160



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 23 

Indemnification 

119. Neither CALTRANS nor any of their officers and employees, are responsible for any injury, 

damage, or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by NVTA, its 

contractors, sub-contractors, and/or its agents under or in connection with any work, authority, 

or jurisdiction conferred upon NVTA under this AGREEMENT.  It is understood and agreed 

that NVTA, to the extent permitted by law, will defend, indemnify, and save harmless 

CALTRANS and all of their officers and employees from all claims, suits, or actions of every 

name, kind, and description brought forth under, but not limited to, tortious, contractual, 

inverse condemnation, or other theories and assertions of liability occurring by reason of 

anything done or omitted to be done by NVTA, its contractors, sub-contractors, and/or its 

agents under this AGREEMENT. 

120. Neither NVTA nor any of their officers and employees, are responsible for any injury, damage, 

or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by CALTRANS, its 

contractors, sub-contractors, and/or its agents under or in connection with any work, authority, 

or jurisdiction conferred upon CALTRANS under this AGREEMENT.  It is understood and 

agreed that CALTRANS, to the extent permitted by law, will defend, indemnify, and save 

harmless NVTA and all of their officers and employees from all claims, suits, or actions of 

every name, kind, and description brought forth under, but not limited to, tortious, contractual, 

inverse condemnation, or other theories and assertions of liability occurring by reason of 

anything done or omitted to be done by CALTRANS, its contractors, sub-contractors, and/or 

its agents under this AGREEMENT. 

Non-parties 

121. PARTIES do not intend this AGREEMENT to create a third party beneficiary or define duties, 

obligations, or rights for entities not signatory to this AGREEMENT.  PARTIES do not intend 

this AGREEMENT to affect their legal liability by imposing any standard of care for fulfilling 

the WORK different from the standards imposed by law. 

122. PARTIES will not assign or attempt to assign obligations to entities not signatory to this 

AGREEMENT without an amendment to this AGREEMENT. 

Ambiguity and Performance 

123. NVTA will not interpret any ambiguity contained in this AGREEMENT against CALTRANS.  

NVTA waives the provisions of California Civil Code, Section 1654. 

A waiver of a PARTY’s performance under this AGREEMENT will not constitute a 

continuous waiver of any other provision. 

 161



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 24 

124. A delay or omission to exercise a right or power due to a default does not negate the use of that 

right or power in the future when deemed necessary. 

Defaults 

125. If any PARTY defaults in its performance of the WORK, a non-defaulting PARTY will request 

in writing that the default be remedied within thirty (30) calendar days.  If the defaulting 

PARTY fails to do so, the non-defaulting PARTY may initiate dispute resolution. 

Dispute Resolution 

126. PARTIES will first attempt to resolve AGREEMENT disputes at the PROJECT team level as 

described in the Quality Management Plan.  If they cannot resolve the dispute themselves, the 

CALTRANS District Director and the Executive Officer of NVTA will attempt to negotiate a 

resolution. If PARTIES do not reach a resolution, PARTIES’ legal counsel will initiate 

mediation. PARTIES agree to participate in mediation in good faith and will share equally in 

its costs. 

Neither the dispute nor the mediation process relieves PARTIES from full and timely 

performance of the WORK in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT.  However, if 

any PARTY stops fulfilling its obligations, any other PARTY may seek equitable relief to 

ensure that the WORK continues. 

Except for equitable relief, no PARTY may file a civil complaint until after mediation, or 

forty-five (45) calendar days after filing the written mediation request, whichever occurs first. 

PARTIES will file any civil complaints in the Superior Court of the county in which the 

CALTRANS District Office signatory to this AGREEMENT resides or in the Superior Court 

of the county in which the PROJECT is physically located.  

127. PARTIES maintain the ability to pursue alternative or additional dispute remedies if a 

previously selected remedy does not achieve resolution.  

Prevailing Wage 

128. When WORK falls within the Labor Code § 1720(a)(1) definition of "public works" in that it is 

construction, alteration, demolition, installation, or repair; or maintenance work under Labor 

Code § 1771, PARTIES will conform to the provisions of Labor Code §§ 1720-1815, and all 

applicable provisions of California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Division 1, Chapter 8, 

Subchapter 3, Articles 1-7.  PARTIES will include prevailing wage requirements in contracts 

for public work and require contractors to include the same prevailing wage requirements in all 

subcontracts.  

 162



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 25 

Work performed by a PARTY’s own employees is exempt from the Labor Code's Prevailing 

Wage requirements. 

If WORK is paid for, in whole or part, with federal funds and is of the type of work subject to 

federal prevailing wage requirements, PARTIES will conform to the provisions of the Davis-

Bacon and Related Acts, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3148. 

When applicable, PARTIES will include federal prevailing wage requirements in contracts for 

public works.  WORK performed by a PARTY’s employees is exempt from federal prevailing 

wage requirements.   

 

  

 163



Agreement 04-2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17 (Created July 2, 2019) 26 

SIGNATURES 

PARTIES are empowered by California Streets and Highways Code to enter into this 

AGREEMENT and have delegated to the undersigned the authority to execute this AGREEMENT 

on behalf of the respective agencies and covenants to have followed all the necessary legal 

requirements to validly execute this AGREEMENT. 

 

Signatories may execute this AGREEMENT through individual signature pages provided that each 

signature is an original. This AGREEMENT is not fully executed until all original signatures are 

attached. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

 

  

Helena (Lenka) Culik-Caro 
Deputy District Director, Design 
 

VERIFICATION OF FUNDS AND 

AUTHORITY: 

 

  

Jeffrey Armstrong 
District Budget Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 

PROCEDURE: 

 

  

Meera Danday 

Deputy Attorney 

 

CERTIFIED AS TO FINANCIAL TERMS 

AND POLICIES: 

 

 _   

Tamara Warren 

HQ Accounting Supervisor 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY 

 

 

  

Kate Miller 
Executive Director 
 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

  

Karrie Sanderlin 
Program Manager Administration 
 

 

 

Approved as to form and procedure: 

 

 

  

Dee Anne Gillick 
General Counsel 

 

 164



AGREEMENT 04 - 2749 

Project No. 0418000447 

EA 2Q260 

04-NAP-29-29.3 - 37.2 

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17  (Created July 2, 2019)  1 of 4 

FUNDING SUMMARY NO. 01 

 FUNDING TABLE v. 1122 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY NVTA NVTA NVTA NVTA  

Source Party Fund Type PA&ED  PS&E 

R/W 

SUPPORT 

R/W 

CAPITAL 

CONST. 

SUPPORT 

CONST. 

CAPITAL Totals 

STATE CALTRANS ATP 0 0 0 0 100,000 6,006,000 6,106,000 

LOCAL NVTA Local 260,000 700,000 5,000 95,000 0 0 1,060,000 

Totals 260,000 700,000 5,000 95,000 100,000 6,006,000 7,166,000 

 

 

 

 

 SPENDING SUMMARY v 222121 

 PA&ED PS&E R/W Support 
R/W 

CAPITAL 
CONST. SUPPORT 

CONST. 
CAPITAL 

 

Fund Type CALTRANS NVTA CALTRANS NVTA CALTRANS NVTA NVTA CALTRANS NVTA NVTA Totals 

ATP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100,000 6,006,000 6,106,000 

Local 0 260,000 0 700,000 0 5,000 95,000 0 0 0 1,060,000 

Totals 0 260,000 0 700,000 0 5,000 95,000 0 100,000 6,006,000 7,166,000 

 

 165



FUNDING SUMMARY No. 01 AGREEMENT 04 - 2749 

 Project No. 0418000447 

  

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17  (Created July 2, 2019) 2 of 4 

Funding 

1. If there are insufficient funds available in this AGREEMENT to place the PROJECT right-

of-way in a safe and operable condition, the appropriate IMPLEMENTING AGENCY will 

fund these activities until such time as PARTIES amend this AGREEMENT. 

That IMPLEMENTING AGENCY may request reimbursement for these costs during the 

amendment process. 

2. If there are insufficient funds in this AGREEMENT to implement the obligations and 

responsibilities of this AGREEMENT, including the applicable commitments and 

conditions included in the PROJECT environmental documentation, permits, agreements, 

and/or approvals that are in effect at a time that WORK stops, each PARTY accepts 

responsibility to fund their respective WORK until such time as PARTIES amend this 

AGREEMENT. 

Each PARTY may request reimbursement for these costs during the amendment process.  

ICRP Rate 

3. The cost of any engineering support performed by CALTRANS includes all direct and 

applicable indirect costs. CALTRANS calculates indirect costs based solely on the type of 

funds used to pay support costs. State and federal funds administered by CALTRANS are 

subject to the current Program Functional Rate. All other funds are subject to the current 

Program Functional Rate and the current Administration Rate. The Program Functional 

Rate and Administration Rate are adjusted periodically. 

In accordance with California Senate Bill 848, the Administration Rate is capped at 10 

percent until July 1, 2021, for Self-Help Counties with a countywide sales tax measure 

dedicated to transportation improvements. 

4. If the WORK is funded with state or federal funds, any PARTY seeking CALTRANS 

reimbursement of indirect costs must submit an indirect cost rate proposal and central 

service cost allocation plan (if any) in accordance with Local Assistance Procedures 

Manual, 2 CFR, Part 200 and Chapter 5.  These documents are to be submitted annually to 

CALTRANS’ Audits and Investigations for review and acceptance prior to CALTRANS’ 

reimbursement of indirect costs.   

 166



 AGREEMENT 04 - 2749 

 Project No. 0418000447 

  

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17  (Created July 2, 2019) 3 of 4 

5. Travel, per diem, and third-party contract reimbursements for WORK are to be paid from 

the funds in this AGREEMENT only after the contractor performs the work and incurs said 

costs.  

Payments for travel and per diem will not exceed the rates paid rank and file state 

employees under current California Department of Human Resources (CalHR) rules 

current at the effective date of this AGREEMENT.  

If NVTA invoices for rates in excess of CalHR rates, NVTA will fund the cost difference 

and reimburse CALTRANS for any overpayment.  

6. In accordance with the CALTRANS Federal-Aid Project Funding Guidelines, PARTIES 

must obtain approval from the Federal Highway Administration prior to any PROJECT 

funding changes that that will change the federal share of funds. 

Invoicing and Payment 

7. PARTIES will invoice for funds where the SPENDING SUMMARY shows that one 

PARTY provides funds for use by another PARTY.  PARTIES will pay invoices within 

forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of invoice when not paying with Electronic Funds 

Transfer (EFT).  When paying with EFT, NVTA will pay invoices within five (5) calendar 

days of receipt of invoice. 

8. If NVTA has received EFT certification from CALTRANS then NVTA will use the EFT 

mechanism and follow all EFT procedures to pay all invoices issued from CALTRANS. 

9. When a PARTY is reimbursed for actual cost, invoices will be submitted each month for 

the prior month's expenditures.  After all PROJECT COMPONENT WORK is complete, 

PARTIES will submit a final accounting of all PROJECT COMPONENT costs.  Based on 

the final accounting, PARTIES will invoice or refund as necessary to satisfy the financial 

commitments of this AGREEMENT. 

10. If an executed Program Supplement Agreement (PSA) or STIP Planning, Programming, 

and Monitoring Program Fund Transfer Agreement (PPM) exists for this PROJECT then 

NVTA will abide by the billing and payment conditions detailed for the fund types 

identified in the PSA or PPM. 

11. If CALTRANS reimburses NVTA for any costs later determined to be unallowable, NVTA 

will reimburse those funds. 

 167



 AGREEMENT 04 - 2749 

 Project No. 0418000447 

  

Project Development Agreement 2017-02-17  (Created July 2, 2019) 4 of 4 

Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA&ED) 

12. No invoicing or reimbursement will occur for the PA&ED PROJECT COMPONENT. 

Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) 

13. No invoicing or reimbursement will occur for the PS&E PROJECT COMPONENT. 

RIGHT-OF-WAY Support 

14. No invoicing or reimbursement will occur for the R/W SUPPORT PROJECT 

COMPONENT. 

RIGHT-OF-WAY Capital 

15. No invoicing or reimbursement will occur for the R/W CAPITAL PROJECT 

COMPONENT. 

CONSTRUCTION Support 

16. NVTA will invoice and CALTRANS will reimburse for actual costs incurred and paid. 

CONSTRUCTION Capital 

17. NVTA will invoice and CALTRANS will reimburse for actual costs incurred and paid. 

 

 168



January 15, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION/ACTION 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY:  Kate Miller, Executive Director  

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: State and Federal Legislative Update and State Bill Matrix 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Information only 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
State Update 
Attached are the State legislative update (Attachment 1) and the State Bill Matrix 
(Attachment 2).   
 
AB 1350 (Gonazalez) has been amended.  The bill would require all public transit 
properties to provide free transit to students.  The amendment lowers the eligible age to 
from 25 to 18 and no longer proposes a revenue source to fund the program. Without 
additional revenues, NVTA’s fare revenues would be reduced by over $50,000 annually 
and the Vine would no longer meets its mandated farebox recovery of 15%.  
Consequently, staff is recommending that the NVTA Board change its position from 
WATCH to OPPPOSE, unless amended. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comments 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments: (1) January 6, 2020 State Legislative Update (Platinum Advisors) 

(2) January 6, 2020 State Bill Matrix (Platinum Advisors) 

 169

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


1 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.4 

January 15, 2020 

January 6, 2020 

TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

FR: Steve Wallauch 
Platinum Advisors 

RE: Legislative Update  

Reconvene:  The Legislature returns today for the second half of the legislative session. 
The second half of session starts with a flurry of activity.  Governor Newsom will release 
his proposed budget on January 10th, and all legislation that remains in its house of origin 
must be approved by the end of January to remain alive.  The month of January is packed 
with hearings in the rush to move two-year bills. 

Budget Outlook:  While the Governor’s spending priorities will not be unveiled until later 
this week, the Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) released its mid-year fiscal outlook and 
the Assembly Budget Committee released its priorities for the next fiscal year.   

According to the LAO the future remains cautiously bright.  The LAO estimates a $7 billion 
surplus in the 2020-21 fiscal year, but this assumes that the federal government approves 
the state’s reauthorization of the managed care organization (MCO) tax.  If it is not 
approved the surplus drops to $4 billion.  Of the $7 billion surplus the LAO estimates an 
ongoing surplus of about $3 billion.  However, the LAO recommends that the Legislature 
budget $1 billion or less for ongoing purposes in 2020-21. The remaining surplus should 
be allocated toward building reserves, paying down debt, and providing funding for one-
time flexible commitments. The LAO estimates the Budget Stabilization Account 
(BSA)/rainy-day fund will reach about $18.3 billion by the end of 2020-21. 

The chair of the Assembly Budget Committee, Assemblyman Phil Ting, provided a 
general outline of the Committee’s spending priorities in advance of the Governor’s plan. 
The Assembly adheres to the LAO’s fiscal outlook and has pegged its priorities to first 
prepare for any economic downturn, and also continue to provide needed investments in 
childcare, education behavioral health, affordability, and climate change.  The plan did 
not provide details on how cap & trade funds would be allocated to address the transition 
toward zero emission transit vehicles. 

Faster Bay Area:  SB 278 (Beall) is the likely vehicle for the Faster Bay Area regional 
transportation sales tax proposal.  This measure remains in the Senate Transportation 

 170



2 
 

Committee and must be approved by the Senate by the end of the month to remain alive.  
Given the complexity of this measure, the version approved by the Senate will be little 
more than a spot bill as negotiations continue.  SB 278 currently makes minor changes 
to Bay Area transportation planning statutes.  It will likely be amended this week to deal 
more directly with the Faster Bay Area proposal.  SB 278 is expected to be heard by the 
Senate Transportation Committee on January 14th.   

Housing:  There have been numerous housing related bills introduced last year, and 
more to come this year.  One of the more controversial proposals has been SB 50 
(Wiener), which was held in the Senate Appropriations Committee last year.  However, 
SB 50 will be amended today with the expectation it will be approved by the 
Appropriations Committee and the Senate before the end of the month.   

In short, SB 50 would require local governments to provide a specified “equitable 
communities incentive” to developers that construct residential developments in “jobs-
rich” and “transit-rich” areas, which may include certain exceptions to specified 
requirements for zoning, density, parking, height restrictions, and floor area ratios.  In 
order to move this bill forward, amendments are being made to provide another pathway 
for cities and counties.  The bulk of the amendments are structural and technical, but they 
will also include a local flexibility option.  The devil is always in the details, which will be 
made clear tomorrow. 

The amendments will delay the implementation of the SB 50 equitable community 
incentives for two years, taking effect on January 1, 2023.  During that time, local 
governments can then do nothing and let SB 50 take effect, or develop a local flexibility 
plan.  The local plan could be an existing plan if it provides equally robust housing and is 
consistent with fair housing findings.  These flexibility plans would be submitted to the 
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research and the Department of Housing and 
Community Development for review and approval.  The local flexibility plan would also be 
based on VMTs, which eliminates the need for the projects to be located near transit.   

A new requirement being added to the bill would require 40% of affordable units in a 
housing project must be reserved for people that live within a ½ mile of the project.  More 
details to follow as the SB 50 rewrite is introduced, but the expectation is SB 50 will be 
approved by the Senate and undergo a more thorough vetting in the Assembly. 

 

 171



1 
 

 
 

January 6, 2020 
 
The following bill matrix has been edited to delete all measures that were chaptered or vetoed in 
2019.  The following measure remain active in 2020; however, measures held on suspense are 
unlikely to move.  All two-year bills must be approved by their house of origin by January 31st. 
 
Existing Positions 

Bills Subject Status Recommended 
Positions 

AB 1350 
(Gonzalez D)  
Youth Transit 
Pass Pilot 
Program. 
 
 
 

AB 1350 would create the Youth 
Transit Pass Pilot Program.  This bill 
is similar to prior efforts to create a 
funding program to provide free 
transit passes to persons under 18 
years old.  AB 1350 does not include 
an appropriation. Governor Brown 
vetoed a similar bill because of the 
need for additional information on 
existing programs.  The UCLA study 
is not expected to be completed until 
the end of this year. 
 

ASSEMBLY   TRANS. 
– Two-Year Bill 

OPPOSE unless 
amended  

Bills Subject Status Client Positions 

AB 11 
(Chiu D)  
Community 
Redevelopment 
Law of 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB 11 would enact the Community 
Redevelopment Act of 2019 and 
allow local governments to form a 
housing and infrastructure agency 
that would focus on affordable 
housing and infrastructure 
investments.  The bill requires a seat 
on the governing board for each 
affected taxing entity, and it allows an 
affected taxing entity to elect to 
contribute to the Redevelopment 
Agency (RDA) or not.  In addition, the 
bill also allows an RDA to capture the 
growth on the schools’ share (i.e. 
Educational Revenue Augmentation 

ASSEMBLY APPR – 
Held on Suspense 
 
Two-Year Bill 

WATCH 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.4 

January 15, 2020 
 

 172

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201350');
https://a80.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%2011');
https://a17.asmdc.org/


2 
 

AB 11 
(Chiu D)  
(Continued) 

Fund [ERAF]) of the property tax 
growth.   
 
AB 11 does require any new RDA to 
be approved by the Strategic Growth 
Council, which must find that the 
redevelopment plan furthers 
greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction 
goals and the fiscal impact to the 
state for backfilling the lost ERAF 
growth does not exceed a yet to be 
specified amount.  The new RDA 
could finance housing, transit, transit 
priority projects, interchanges, 
bridges, parks and port infrastructure, 
to name a few.  The projects do need 
to be located within the 
redevelopment area, but must have a 
nexus to the project area. 
 

AB 659 
(Mullin D)  
Transportation: 
emerging 
transportation 
technologies: 
California 
Smart City 
Challenge 
Grant Program. 

 AB 659 requires the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) to 
form a working group, consisting of 
local governments and transportation 
entities that would develop the 
guidelines and selection criteria for 
the Smart City Challenge Grants.  
The bill envisions funding projects 
that use intelligent transportation 
systems and applications that would 
reduce congestion, enhance mobility, 
safety, and spurring innovation.  The 
bill does not currently identify or 
appropriate funds for this program. 
 

ASSEMBLY APPR – 
Held on Suspense 
 
Two-Year Bill 

WATCH 

AB 847 
(Grayson D)  
Transportation 
finance: 
priorities: 
housing. 
 
 
 
 
 

As introduced, AB 847 would create a 
funding incentive for cities and 
counties to produce housing by 
reallocating non-Article 19 
transportation funds and provide 
bonuses for certain funding 
programs. 
However, the bill was gutted and 
amended to now create a new 
competitive grant program.  This bill 

ASSEMBLY H & C. D. 
– Two-Year Bill 

WATCH 

 173

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%2011');
https://a17.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20659');
https://a22.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20847');
https://a14.asmdc.org/


3 
 

AB 847 
(Grayson D) 
(Continued) 

does not provide a funding source, 
but it directs the Department of 
Housing and Community 
Development to create a grant 
program that would offset up to 100% 
of any local transportation impact 
fees imposed on a housing project 
that includes at least 20% affordable 
units.  
 

AB 1402 
(Petrie-
Norris D)  
Active 
Transportation 
Program. 

AB 1402 was not heard in the 
Assembly Committee on 
Transportation and is now a two-year 
bill.   
This bill would revise the allocation 
process for Active Transportation 
Program (ATP) Funds.  AB 1402 is 
substantively similar to the changes 
made to the ATP in SB 152 (Beall), 
but the bills are structured a little 
differently.   
 

ASSEMBLY   TRANS. 
Two-Year Bill 

SUPPORT 

AB 1568 
(McCarty D)  
General plans: 
housing 
element: 
production 
report: 
withholding of 
transportation 
funds 

AB 1568 was held by the 
Appropriations Committee and is now 
a 2-year bill.   
This bill would, if on or before 
January 1, 2025, a city or county is 
found to be out of compliance with 
existing housing element 
requirements then that city or county 
would be prohibited from applying for 
state grants.  This prohibition would 
not apply to grants protected under 
Article 19 of the Constitution, which 
covers most transportation funds, or if 
the grant would assist the city or 
county in complying with housing 
element laws. 
As introduced this bill would have 
withheld SB 1 local streets and roads 
funds from a city or county that is 
found to be out of compliance with 
existing housing element laws.   
 

ASSEMBLY APPR – 
Held on Suspense 
 
Two-Year Bill 

OPPOSE 
 
 

 174

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20847');
https://a14.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201402');
https://a74.asmdc.org/
https://a74.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201568');
https://a07.asmdc.org/


4 
 

ACA 1 
(Aguiar-
Curry D)  
Local 
government 
financing: 
affordable 
housing and 
public 
infrastructure: 
voter approval. 
 
 

ACA 1 failed passage on the 
Assembly Floor.  Reconsideration 
was granted, and another attempt is 
possible, but the measure was 8 
votes short of the 54 needed for 
passage.  A few Democrat members 
voted No, and several others 
abstained.  Given the stigma that this 
measure erodes Prop 13 protections 
makes it unlikely it will secure the 
needed support to move to the 
Senate. 
ACA 1 would lower the voter 
threshold for property tax increases, 
parcel taxes and sales taxes to 55% 
if the funds are used for affordable 
housing and infrastructure projects.  
This includes capital improvements to 
transit and streets and highways.   
However, ACA 1 does not allow for 
the 55% local measure to use the tax 
revenue for transit operations. 

ASSEMBLY FLOOR 
 
Failed Passage – 
Reconsideration 
Granted 

SUPPORT 

SB 50 
(Wiener D)  
Planning and 
zoning: housing 
development: 
equitable 
communities 
incentive. 

SB 50 would require local 
governments to provide a specified 
“equitable communities incentive” to 
developers that construct residential 
developments in “jobs-rich” and 
“transit-rich” areas, which may 
include certain exceptions to 
specified requirements for zoning, 
density, parking, height restrictions, 
and floor area ratios.  

SENATE APPR 
 
Two-Year Bill 

WATCH 

SB 152 
(Beall D)  
Active 
Transportation 
Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This bill would implement some of the 
findings made by the Legislative 
Analyst’s Office (LAO) regarding the 
administration of the ATP.  The goal 
is to streamline the administrative 
process for awarding ATP funds.  
The bill includes the following 
changes: 

• Modified the distribution 
formula to increase from 40% 
to 75% that is allocated to 
metropolitan planning 
organizations (MPO), increase 
the rural county share from 

SENATE APPR – 
Held on Suspense 
 
Two-Year Bill 

SUPPORT 

 175

javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%201');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%2050');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20152');
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/


5 
 

SB 152 
(Beall D) 
(Continued) 
 

10% to 15%, and reduce the 
statewide pot that is 
administered by the CTC from 
50% to 10%. 

• Shift greater administrative 
control for the regional share 
to the MPOs. 

• Increase reporting 
requirements from the MPOs 
to the CTC. 

SB 336 
(Dodd D)  
Transportation: 
fully-automated 
transit vehicles. 
 
 
 

SB 336 aims to address safety and 
customer service issues by requiring 
at least one public transit employee 
to be present on any fully automated 
transit vehicle.  The public transit 
employee shall be trained in 
passenger safety, communications, 
emergency preparedness, and 
assisting the disabled and elderly.   
 
SB 336 would also require any transit 
operator that deploys an autonomous 
vehicle to submit a report to the 
legislature on that deployment by 
March 31st, 2025.  SB 336 would 
sunset on January 1, 2025.   
 

ASSEMBLY TRANSP 
– Two-Year Bill 

SUPPORT 

 

 176

javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20152');
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20336');
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/

	0000_Agenda
	0005_1_Draft Minutes
	Meeting Minutes - Draft
	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	Leon Garcia Chris Canning Jill Techel Paul Dohring Mark Joseph Kerri Dorman Ryan Gregory Belia Ramos

	4. Adoption of the Agenda
	21 -

	5. Public Comment
	6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's, and Association of Bay Area Governments Update
	7. Director's Update
	8. Caltrans' Update
	23 -

	9.2 Resolution No. 19-18 Setting the Regular Meeting Time, Place, and Schedule of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Governing Board, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), the Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC), the Citizen Advisory...
	9.3 Resolution No. 19-19 Adopting the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Title VI Program for Fiscal Years (FY) 2020-2021 (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 29-109)
	9.5 Resolution No. 19-20 Adopting of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) Program and Goal Setting for Fiscal Years (FY's) 2020-2022 (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 196-231)
	21 -

	10.1 2020 Federal and State Legislative Advocacy Program and Project Priorities and Legislative and State Bill Matrix Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 232-254)
	23 -
	23 -
	23 -
	23 -
	23 -
	16 -

	10.7 American Canyon Transit Service Hour Expansion (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 364-370)
	22 -

	10.8 Marketing and Communication Plan Update for Vine Service Revisions (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 371-372)
	23 -



	0006_1_Staff Report
	10.2_1 SMART Revised Letter of Support_kes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.2_SMART Revised Letter of Support Attch 1 Revised Letter of Support_kes
	10.2_SMART Revised Letter of Support Attch 2 CAC Letter of Support_kes

	0007_1_Staff Report
	10.3 Platinum Amendment 2-KM changes made
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.3 Attch 1 A2_PLATINUM_TERM  FUND_ryk_DMG

	0008_1_Staff Report
	11.1 Countywide Transportation Plan-Goal and Performance Measures-KM no changes
	Action Requested: ACTION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	Countywide Transportation Plan-Goal and Objectives_revised_KM
	11.1_attch 2 Draft Performance Measures-KM no changes

	0009_1_Staff report
	11.2 00FY 19 Fiscal Audit ao-KM changes
	Action Requested: ACCEPT AND FILE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.2 FY 19 Fiscal Audit Attch 1 SAS 114
	11.2 FY 19 Fiscal Audit attch 2 (003)
	11.2 FY 19 Fiscal Audit Attch 3 Single Audit Report reduced

	0010_1_Staff Report
	11.3 0Caltrans Cooperative Agreement-KM - Rebecca needs to review changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.3 Caltrans Cooperative Agreement Attach 1 Resolution 20-01-KM - Rebecca needs to review changes
	A RESOLUTION OF THE
	NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA)
	AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 04-2749
	BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
	(CALTRANS) AND THE NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

	11.3 Caltrans Cooperative Agreement Attach 2 04-2749 CleanDraft 11-27-19

	0011_1_Staff Report
	11.4 0Legislative Update Memo_kes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION/ACTION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.4 Legislative Report  Attch 1
	11.4 State Matrix Attch 2




